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UVODEM

Opora Cizojazycna priprava AJ 2 je urCena pro studenty prezencni i distan¢ni formy
studia a svym rozsahem odpovida vyuce anglického jazyka za tfeti semestr na ekonomic-
kych fakultach. Opora je rozvrzena do Sesti tematickych okruhti — Marketing ans Selling
— Advertising, Entrepreneurs — Business Organisation and People, — Cutting Costs —
Profit, Loss and Payment a obsahuje také anotaci, vcetné klicovych slov. Kapitoly jsou
roz€lenény do nasledujicich ¢asti: slovni zasoba, text a otazky k textu, nacvik lexika a gra-
matikya na konci nasleduje test. Jednotlivé kapitoly si kladou za cil procvicit, prohloubit a
zdokonalit si znalosti v anglickém jazyce v oblasti tykajici se marketingu a prodeje, re-
klamy, podnikatele, obchodni organizace spolecnosti, nakladu, vykazi ziskt a ztrat, a glo-
balniho obchodu. Tomu je pfizptisobena slovni zasoba a cviCeni. Vybrana obchodni témata
pfipravuji svou odbornou slovni zasobou, nacvikem lexika a gramatiky Ci testi na konci
kapitol na typizované a z velké Casti autentické obchodni situace z jazykového hlediska.
ZavéreCna Cast se vénuje aktivnimu nacviku vSech nejbe&znéjsich spojeni, frazi ¢i jinych
obchodnich obratd, které moderni obchodni anglictina vyuziva. Material celkové tvoti za-
klad pro zvladnuti jednotlivych problematik v praxi a usnadni posluchactim lépe se adap-
tovat na cizojazy¢né firemni prostiedi. Jednim z klicovych vystupti opory Cizojazy¢na pii-
prava AJ 2 je krom¢ zvladnuti slovni zasoby, cviCeni lexika ¢i gramatiky také umeéni pra-
covat s odbornym textem a v neposledni fadé posileni komunikativnich dovednosti v mo-
dernim profesnim podnikatelském prostredi. Zaveérecna Cast Dictionary se vénuje aktiv-
nimu nacviku vSech nejbéznéjsich spojeni, frazi ¢i jinych obchodnich obratt, které moderni
obchodni angli¢tina vyuziva.
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RYCHLY NAHLED STUDIJNi OPORY

Studijni opora Cizojazy¢na priprava AJ 2 je rozdelena do sedmi kapitol, které navazuji
na predchazejici Casti a rozvijeji dalsi témata obchodni anglictiny, pfipadné je prohlubuji.
Kazda kapitola je rozdélena na lexikalni cast a ¢ast gramatickou. V kazdé kapitole se obje-
vuji shodné prvky — napf. ivodni text, slovni zasoba, zavéreCny test apod. Ke snadnéjsi
orientaci studenta slouzi tzv. distan¢ni prvky — Pravodce studiem (obsahuje slovni zasobu
k témati), Otazky, Odpovédi, Samostatny tkol apod. Samostatny tikol a Ukol k zamysleni
slouzi k samostatné ptipravé k dané problematice a bude predmétem diskuse na seminatich
nebo tutorialech. V pribéhu lekce si student mize zkontrolovat Groven znalosti pomoci
testt, které jsou vkladany dle potieby, a rovnéz kazda kapitola je zakoncena souhrnnym
testem, ktery provéfi zvladnuti dané problematiky. V zavéru opory je umistén slovnik,
ktery je shrnutim zakladni slovni zasoby uzivané v obchodni anglictiné. Kazda lekce je
opatfena klicem ke cvi¢enim, ktera to vyzaduji. Odpovédi na otazky za textem jsou dohle-
datelné v textu.

Kapitoly 1 a 2 se zabyvaji t¢ématy Marketing and Selling a Advertising s cilem pfipra-
vit studenty na problematiku marketingu, prodeje a reklamy.

Kapitoly 3 a 4 se soustfed’uji na podnikani Entrepreneur a Business Organisation and
People se zaméfenim nejen na podnikani, ale také na podnikatele a typy obchodnich spo-
lecnosti.

Kapitoly 5 a 6 se vénuji oblasti firemni vykonnosti Cutting Costs a Profit, Loss and
Payment , zvlasté pak nakladiim, investicim, platebnim podminkam.

Kapitola Global Trade se zabyva problematikou globalniho obchodu, konkrétné fran-
Sizou.
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1 MARKETING AND SELLING - SALES VERSUS MAR-
KETING

B e

Kapitola je vénovana marketingu a prodeji, které se vyskytuji v kazdé spolecnosti nebo
firmé. Jsou vysvétleny klicové oblasti marketingu a prodeje a také smarketingu.

V gramatické Casti se zaméfite na stupfiovani pfidavnych jmen a pocitatelna a nepocita-
telna podstatna jména v anglicting.

Hlotewpmory ]

Po absolvovani kapitoly budu umét:

e Pojmenovat typické aktivity spojené s marketingem,
e Pojmenovat typické aktivity spojené s prodejem,

e Vysvétlit rozdily mezi marketingem a prodejem,

e Pohovofit o marketingu a prodeji.

]
_

Advertising, demand, marketing, sales, smarketing, promotion.

1.1 Vocabulary

advertising reklama

approach piistup

arise vznikat

come into contact vstupovat do kontaktu
common spole¢ny

commission provize

customer zakaznik

oo
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demand poptavka

detached oddéleny, izolovany
driven nad$eny, motivovany
goal cil

market trh

market research pruzkum trhu
measure zméfit, spocitat
objective cil

price cena

promotion podpora prodeje
purchase kupovat

pursue sledovat

revenue ptijem, trzby

target cil

tension napéti

1.2 The role of sales and marketing, the difference between sa-
les and marketing, smarketing

Sales and marketing work well together in the majority of companies, and they see them-
selves as colleagues with common goals. However, it is interesting to look at the differences
between sales and marketing in terms of their jobs and their personalities, as this helps us
to understand why tensions might arise.

The fundamental difference is that sales people come into constant and direct contact
with customers whereas marketing people, on the whole, do not. Sales people know what
the market wants because they talk directly to customers; marketing people know because
they do market research.

Marketers create demand through advertising and promotion and they may view the
sales function as the necessary final stage in which the customer purchases what they al-
ready want.

Sales people, who probably spend a lot of time out of the office meeting customers, may
see marketers as slightly detached from reality: marketers plan campaigns and promotions
that may be expensive and difficult to measure in terms of effectiveness, while sales people
are out on the road doing ‘the hard work’.

A further source of tension is pay. Marketers receive salary; sales people typically work
on a basic salary plus commission, and they are also often competing for sales against their
own colleagues. In terms of personality, marketers tend to be both creative (e.g. to come
up with new campaigns) and analytical (e.g. to analyse market research data). They are
often referred to as the ‘creatives’ inside a company. Sales people tend to be driven, com-
petitive, individualistic and intuitive. They like the challenge of trying to meet targets and
the chance to earn a lot if they do well. They also pride themselves on their interpersonal
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skills; in face-to-face interaction, they can sense exactly how to pursue people, and can
adapt their persona quickly according to the customer they are speaking to.

Now let us consider smarketing. It is the process of integrating the sales and marketing
processes of a business. The objective is for the sales and marketing functions to have a
common integrated approach. This can lead to annual revenue growth of up to 20%, accor-
ding to a study in 2010. The objective is to promote the product or service to potential
buyers and at the same time integrate this process with the sales department's activities.
Sales and marketing departments should meet frequently and agree on a common termino-
logy, and using data throughout the entire sales and marketing process to identify good
prospects and to follow up on how well they are followed up. Smarketing works best when
a firm does closed loop reporting by tracking its success with particular prospects from the
marketing stage through direct sales efforts.

Zdroj: Sharma, P., a Emmerson, P., 2014. The Business Pre-Intermediate Teacher’s Book. London, Macmillian. ISBN 978-0-230-
43784-5.

(7]

1 Explain what marketing means.

2 Explain what the sales mean.

3 Explain the difference between marketing and sales people in companies.
4 What do marketers usually do in companies?

5 What do sales people usually do in companies?

6 What qualities do marketers have?

7 What qualities do sales people have?

8 Explain the main objectives of smarketing?

LEXIS

1.1 Decide which of the following activities are covered by marketing or sales, write
M or S:

1. Overall picture to promote, distribute, price products/services; fulfill customer's wants
and needs through products and/or services the company can offer. ...
2. ... fulfill sales volume objectives.

10
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3. .... shows how to reach to the customers and build long-lasting relationship.

4. targets the construction of a brand identity so that it becomes easily associated with
need fulfillment.

5. ... deal with a transaction between two parties where the buyer receives goods (tan-
gible or intangible), services and/or assets in exchange for money.

1.2 Complete the most suitable word:

A purchases, B sales people, C advertising, D promotion, E market research, F
demand, G smarketing, H common integrated approach, I customers

The fundamental difference is that sales people come into constant and direct contact
with 1. ... whereas marketing people, on the whole, do not. Sales people know what the
market wants because they talk directly to customers; marketing people know because they
do 2. .... Marketers create 3. ... through 4. ... and 4. ... and they may view the sales func-
tion as the necessary final stage in which the customer 5. ... what they already want. 6. ...
are out on the road doing ‘the hard work’. 7. is the process of integrating the sales and
marketing processes of a business. The objective is for the sales and marketing functions
tohaveal....

1.3 Find the opposites:
1. creative ...

2. analytical ...

3. competitive ...

4. individualistic ...

5. intuitive ...

6. driven ...

1.3 Grammar - Comparatives and superlatives

Ptidavna jména maji v angli¢tiné tfi stupné: zakladni tvar, druhy stuperi a tfeti stuperi.
Druhy stupeii se tvofi pomoci +er (faster, quicker, nicer), tieti stupeni pomoci the + est (the
fastest, the quickest, the nicest). Dlouha ptidavna jména se stupiiuji pomoci opist, a to
slovy MORE (more interesting, more beautiful, more intelligent) a MOST (the most inte-
resting, the most beautiful, the most intelligent). V angli¢tin€ se vyskytuje nékolik vyjimek:

e good, better, best

11
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e bad, worse, worst

e far, farther, fartherst
e far, further, furthest
e many, more, most

e much, more, most

o little, less, least

o few, fewer, fewest

V druhém stupni pfi porovnavani vlastnosti pfedméta pouziva anglictina slivko THAN.

V piipadé€, Ze srovnavame stejné vlastnosti predmétt, pouziva anglictina spojeni AS ...
AS.

K dal§im men§im zménam dochazi naptiklad v téchto piikladech:

long (dlouhy) longer (delsi) longest (nejdelsi)

big (velky) bigger (vetsi) biggest (nejveétsi)

nice (hezky) nicer (hez¢i) nicest (nejhez¢i)

large (velky) larger (vEtsi) largest (nejvetsi)

clever (chytry) cleverer (chytiejsi) cleverest (nejchytiejsi)
funny (legracni) funnier (legracnéjsi) funniest (nejlegracnéjsi)
dry (suchy) drier (sussi) driest (nejsussi)

thin (hubeny) thinner (hubené¢;jsi) thinnest (nejhuben¢;jsi)

Nyni nasleduji dalsi priklady k uvedenym pravidlim vyse.

Your last promotion is better than the first one.

This is one of the worst scenatios that can happen in our company.
. |
The advertising material is less attractive than ours.
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GRAMMAR-EXERCISES

1.4 Use the correct comparative and superlative forms of the adjectives:

1. boring ...
2. smart...
3. old-fashioned ...
4. brave...
5. limited. ..

1.5 Complete the suitable comparative and superlative forms of the ad-
jectives:

1. Our department is (big) ... than yours.

2. Computers are (expensive) ... than telephones.
3. Emails are the (cheap) ... way of modern communication.

4. Dealing with foreign clients may be (difficult) ... than with the ones you know
well.

5. This is the (quick) ... method of payment.

a

The (easy) ... thing to do is to forward that message as soon as possible.

1.4 Grammar - Countable and uncountable nouns

1. Poditatelna podstatna jména (countable nouns) jsou ta, od kterych lze vytvorfit-
mnozné Cislo, a u kterych mazeme urcit pocet jednotlivych kust. U podstatnych jmen po-
Citatelnych v jednotném c¢isle nelze pouzit ve vyznamu 'n€jaky' slovo SOME ani ANY, ale
v mnozném Ccisle ano, pak ve vyznamu ,néjaky“. Mnozstvi pak vyjadiujeme pomoci
MANY ve vyznamu mnoho (many businesses apod.). Otazku na mnozstvi tvoifime pomoci
HOW MANY ve vyznamu kolik (How many companies?). V kladné vété ve vyznamu
mnoho se pouziva jak pro poc., tak 1 nepoC.podst.jména a lot of (There are a lot o new
companies being established right now in Taiwan.)

2. Jako nepocitatelna (uncountable nouns) oznacujeme ta podstatna jména, ktera spo-
Citat nelze, nelze u nich urcit pocet kusti. Mezi nepocitatelna obvykle patii podstatna jména
abstraktni (love, hate) ¢i latkova (snih, voda, vzduch), nebo dalsi (information, news,
baggage, luggage, money apod.). Nepocitatelna podstatna jména se poji s SOME a ANY a
zastupuji tak Clen (some water, some air, some information). Otazku na mnozstvi tvofime

13
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pomoci HOW MUCH (How much time have you got?). Samostatné MUCH se objevuje
nejcasteji v zaporu (We do not have much money left.)

Nyni nasleduji dalsi priklady k uvedenym pravidlam.

She has many business partners in Prague. Ikea has some branches in Italy. There are
not any new business opportunities in Romania. We do many projects on our own.

Our accountant usually has some money in the office. There is a lot of information in
the document.

How much time have you got today?

GRAMMAR-EXERCISES

1.6 Use the correct forms of many, much, a lot of, some, any:

1. The company is expanding quickly. How ... new offices are they planning to open?
2. Last year our company spent ... money on solving complaints.

3. Our Complaint Department handles ... complaints monthly.

4. We did not expect so ... complaints before Christmas.

5. Is there ... money left in the cash desk?

1.7 Which of the words are countable and which ones are not, mark them C or
UC:

1. progress..., 2. research..., 3. satisfaction..., 4. news..., 5. company..., 6. CEO... .
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1.8 Make questions and use how + much or many:
1. Our profit is 2,000 000 USD this year. -

2. Our Customer Satisfaction Department has handled more than 1,000 small complaints
over the past two years. -

3. They owe us some money. -

B

In pairs try to find some examples of marketing and sales activities in the existing
companies and then compare your results with other teams. Give a short presentation about
your findings.

otzr ]

1.5 Test
1 Sales and marketing ... in the majority of companies.

e work well together
e do not work together at all
e work independently

2 Sales people ...

e never come into constant and direct contact with customers.
e do not come into constant and direct contact with customers.
e come into constant and direct contact with customers.

3 Sales people ... what the market wants because they talk directly to customers.

e have no idea
e have aslight idea
e know

15
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4 Marketers create ... through advertising and promotion.

e supply
e demand
e money
S ... receive salary in companies.

e  Marketers
e Advertisers
e Campaigners

6 ... typically work on a basic salary plus commission.

e Accountants
e  Marketers
e Sales people

7 In terms of personality, marketers tend to be both ... .

e creative and analytical
e uncreative and disorganised
e individualistic and intuitive

8 Smarketingis ... .

e the process of separating the sales and marketing processes of a business
e the process of integrating the sales and marketing processes of a business
e the process of overriding the sales and marketing processes of a business

o

Sales people tend to be:

e driven, competitive, individualistic and intuitive
e unmotivated, uncompetent, team oriented and intuitive
e driven, uncompetetive, team oriented and individulistic

10 The objective of ... is to promote the product or service to potential buyers and at
the same time integrate this process with the sales department's activities.

e marketing
e sales
e smarketing

16
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T

1.6 Key

LEXIS

1.1 Decide which of the following activities are covered by marketing or sales, write
M or S:

1. Overall picture to promote, distribute, price products/services; fulfill customer's wants
and needs through products and/or services the company can offer. ... M

2. S... fulfill sales volume objectives.

3. M.... shows how to reach to the customers and build long-lasting relationship.

4. M... targets the construction of a brand identity so that it becomes easily associated
with need fulfillment.

5.S... deal with a transaction between two parties where the buyer receives goods (tan-
gible or intangible), services and/or assets in exchange for money.

1.2 Complete the most suitable word:

A purchases, B sales people, C advertising, D promotion, E market research, F
demand, G smarketing, H common integrated approach , I customers

The fundamental difference is that sales people come into constant and direct contact
with 1. I customers whereas marketing people, on the whole, do not. Sales people know
what the market wants because they talk directly to customers; marketing people know
because they do 2. E market research. Marketers create 3. F demand through 4. C ad-
vertising and 4. D promotion and they may view the sales function as the necessary final
stage in which the customer 5. A purchases what they already want. 6. B Sales people are
out on the road doing ‘the hard work’. 7. G Smarketing is the process of integrating the
sales and marketing processes of a business. The objective is for the sales and marketing
functions to have a H common integrated approach.

1.3 Which word is different?

1. creative ... uncreative, ungifted, unimaginative, uninspired, unproductive, unta-
lented

2. analytical ... chaotic, disorganized, illogical, synthetical, unsystematic

3. competitive ... noncompetitive, unambitious
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4. individualistic ... team oriented, cooperative
5. intuitive ... calculated, meditated, reasoned, taught

6. driven ... unmotivated, unambitious

GRAMMAR-EXERCISES

1.4 Use the correct comparative and superlative forms of the adjectives:

boring ... more+the most boring

smart... smarter, the smartest

old-fashioned ... more+the most old-fashioned
brave...braver, the bravest

limited... more+the most limited

M N

1.5 Complete the suitable comparative and superlative forms of the ad-
jectives:

1. Our department is bigger than yours.

2. Computers are more expensive than telephones.
3. Emails are the cheapest way of modern communication.

4. Dealing with foreign clients may be more difficult than with the ones you know
well.

5. This is the quickest method of payment.
6. The easiest thing to do is to forward that message as soon as possible.

1.6 Use the correct forms of many, much, a lot of, some, any:

1. The company is expanding quickly. How many new offices are they planning to
open?

2. Last year our company spent a lot of/some money on solving complaints.
3. Our Complaint Department handles many complaints monthly.
4. We did not expect so many complaints before Christmas.

5. Is there any money left in the cash desk?
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1.7 Which of the words are countable and which ones are not, mark them C or
UC:

1. progress UN 2. research UN 3. satisfaction UN, 4. news UN, 5. company C, 6. CEO
C.

1.8 Make questions and use how + much or many:
1. Our profit is 2. 000 000 USD this year. - How much is your profit this year?

2. Our Customer Satisfaction Department has handled more than 1.000 small complaints
over the past two years. — How many complaints has your Customer Satisfaction De-
partment handled?

3. They owe us some money. — How much money do they owe us?

1.6.1 TEST
1 Sales and marketing ... in the majority of companies.

e work well together
e do not work together at all
e work independently

2 Sales people ...

e never come into constant and direct contact with customers.
e do not come into constant and direct contact with customers.
e come into constant and direct contact with customers.

3 Sales people ... what the market wants because they talk directly to customers.

e have no idea
e have aslight idea
e know

4 Marketers create ... through advertising and promotion.

e supply
e demand
e money
S ... receive salary in companies.
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e Marketers
e Advertisers
e Campaigners

6 ... typically work on a basic salary plus commission.

e Accountants
e  Marketers
e Sales people

7 In terms of personality, marketers tend to be both ... .

e creative and analytical
e uncreative and disorganised
e individualistic and intuitive

8 Smarketingis ... .

e the process of separating the sales and marketing processes of a business.
e the process of integrating the sales and marketing processes of a business
e the process of overriding the sales and marketing processes of a business.

9 Sales people tend to be:

e driven, competitive, individualistic and intuitive
e unmotivated, uncompetent, team oriented and intuitive
e driven, uncompetetive, team oriented and individulistic

10 The objective of ... is to promote the product or service to potential buyers and at
the same time integrate this process with the sales department's activities.

e marketing
e sales
e smarketing

. |
Kapitola Marketing and Selling — Sales versus Marketing se zaméfila na témata, ktera

jsou klicova v oblasti marketingu a prodeje. Zdturaznila podobné ¢i odlisné prvky marke-
tingu a prodeje a vysvétlila jejich vyzam v modernich spole¢nostech.

1
20
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2 MARKETING AND SELLING - ADVERTISING

owvmmeeroy [

Kapitola se zabyva reklamou v kontextu marektingu a prodeje. Dale zkouma jednotlivé
aspekty moderni reklamy a zaméfuje se na nejruznéjsi oblasti s ni spojené. V neposledni
fadé se soustfedi na procviCovani riznych reklamnich situaci v profesnim zivoté firmy ¢i
jednotlivce.

V lexikalni ¢asti si pfipomeneme a procvi¢ime nejriznéjsi kolokace a spojeni s rekla-
mou.

oreroroy ]

V této kapitole se naucim:

e Slovni zasobu k tématu reklama,
e Pohovofit o reklamé a tématech spojenych s reklamou,
e Pouzivat kli¢ova slova z oblasti reklamy.

_

Advertising, marketing, marketing plan, persuading, selling.

2.1 Vocabulary

above the line promotion nadlinkové reklamni kampan
acquire ziskat, nabyt

advertising reklama

advertising campaign reklamni kampan

common ground spole¢ny zajem

consider zvazovat, premyslet o néem
consumer spotiebitel

dismiss zavrhnout, odmitnout

divert pievést, piesmérovat

doubt pochybnost
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encourage podpotit, povzbudit

entice prilakat, nalakat
indispensable nezbytny, nepostardatelny
measure mefit

medium masovy sdélovaci prostredek
message hlavni mySlenka, déleni

mission statement

prohlaseni o firemnim poslani

mission vision

prohlaseni o firemni predstaveé

objection namitka

persuasive presvédcivy

product life cycle zivotni cyklus produktu
objective cil

reach dopad, rozsah (rekl kampan¢)
salesperson prodejce

skills dovednosti

substantial znacny

swap nahradit, vyménit

2.2 Marketing activities. Sales activities. Advertising

Advertising is defined as any "paid-for method of promotion". Advertising is the main
form of "above the line promotion".

Advertising presents or promotes the product to the target audience through a variety of
media such as TV, radio, cinema, online, social media and magazines to encourage them
to buy.

The problem with advertising is that consumers are bombarded with advertising messages
every day.

How can a business cut through the advertising noise and get a message across effectively?
And how can a business measure the effectiveness of an advertising campaign. It is often
said that businesses waste half their advertising spend — the problem is that they don't know
which half!

When deciding which type of advertising to use — known as an advertising medium — a
business needs to consider the following factors:

e Reach of the media — national or local; number of potential customers it could
reach; how long before the message is seen

o Nature of the product — the media needs to reflect the image of the product; a
recruitment ad would be placed in a trade magazine or newspaper but a lipstick ad
would be shown on TV or women's magazines

o Position in product lifecycle — launch stage will need different advertising from
products undergoing extension strategies

e Cost of medium & size of advertising budget — e.g. local newspaper advertising
is cheaper than radio, which in turn is cheaper than TV. But the business will also
want to consider cost per head if reaching a larger audience
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e Online or offline — there has been substantial growth in businesses that advertise
online as they swap some (sometimes all) of their advertising budgets to reach In-
ternet users. The rapid growth of Google, YouTube, Facebook, and Twitter adver-
tising revenues is an illustration of how powerful online advertising has become,
particularly through social media channels.

Advertising can also be split into two main types:

o Persuasive advertising - this tries to entice the customer to buy the product by
informing them of the product benefit

o Informative advertising - this gives the customer information. Mostly done by the
government (e.g. health campaigns, new welfare benefits)

Sometimes a business will employ an advertising agency to deal with its needs. An
agency plans, organises and produces advertising campaigns for other businesses. The
advantage of an agency managing the campaign is that it has the expertise a business may
not have, e.g. copywriters, designers and media buyers.

Let us now look at some advantages. These include the following:
e Wide coverage
e Control of message
e Repetition means that the message can be communicated effectively
e Can be used to build brand loyalty
In the end, let us consider some advantages:
e Often expensive
e Impersonal
e One way communication
e Lacks flexibility

e Limited ability to close a sale

Zdroj: Advertising. [online]. [cit. 2018-11-11]. Dostupné z: https://www.tutor2u.net/business/reference/adverti-
sing/
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7]

1 Explain in your own words what advertising is?
2 Name some typical problems connected with advertising.
3 Explain what an advertising medium is?

4 Explain 5 factors stated in the article, which companies should consider when deciding
which type of advertising they should opt for.

5 How can be advertising divided? Explain the details of this division.

LEXIS
2.1 Match the words 1-8 with a-h to make advertising collocations:
I..
2..
3..
4. ...
5..
6. .
7. .
8.
1 increase a) a campaign
2 obtain b) a new market
3 run ¢) personal recommendations
4 enter d) market share
5 raise e) space
6 launch f) awareness
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7 buy g) of mouth
8 word h) a new product

2.2 Translate the following advertising terms into Czech:

. companies advertise ...

. companies have a message ...

. companies want to reach new customers ...

. companies build brand image ...

. companies increase market share ...

. companies run a campaign ...

. companies enter a new market ...

. companies launch a new product ...

. campaigns follow the AIDA formula ...

10. they raise awareness, build interest, create desire, and want consumers take action

O 0 3 O Lt & W N~

2.3 Find the most suitable advertising collocations:
a) satisfy b) set ¢) build d) purchase e) meet f) deliver g) conduct

1. .... market studies
2. ... customers needs

3. help customers ... products
4. ... image

5. ... the goods

6. ... consumer needs

7. ... competitive prices

2.4 Match the phrases in exercise 2.3 with the definitions below:

. ship the product to the customer ...

. decide how much people will pay ...

. provide something people require ...

. give credit or easy terms of payment ...

. give people what they want ...

. encourage positive feelings about your product ...

. collect information on what people are buying and selling ...

~N N B W~

2.3 Persuading

Persuading is a skill that business people need to employ daily. The modern concept is
that persuasion is not just the hard sell of a salesperson with a customer, but an important
skill to use throughout our professional life. For example, with colleagues inside a company
you might need persuasion to:
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e Divert resources to your own projects
e Bring people round to your point of view
e Motivate people who report directly to you, etc.

What behavioural elements are useful for persuading and influencing? Possible
ones are:

e Finding common ground with the listener

e Active listening (really listening to people’s doubts and objections, accept-
ing them and answering them rather than dismissing them too quickly)

e Appealing to emotions as well as using logical arguments (people want your
solution to make them feel good, not just to agree with you in theory)

e Using stories (telling a personal story that illustrates your point, rather than
giving only dry facts and statistics)

e Assertiveness (being strong and confident without being aggressive or
pushy)

e Body language (mirroring the listener’s body language), etc.

These skills can be acquired slowly, and many come naturally with practice and
experience.

Zdroj: Sharma, P., a Emmerson, P., 2014. The Business Pre-Intermediate Teacher’s Book. London, Macmillian. ISBN 978-0-230-
43784-5.

7]

1 Explain what persuading is, and why it is important in advertising to pay attention to it.
2 What are some typical situations, which require the knowledge of persuading techniques?
3 Name and explain behavioural elements useful for persuading and influencing.

4 How can we acquire such skills?
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LEXIS
2.5 Match the pairs of expressions that have a similar meaning:
1...2...3... 4...
1. Keep in mind that a) and as aresult ...
2. which means that ...  b) I know what you mean. However, ...
3. What’s more, ... c¢) Don’t forget that

4. I see your point. But ... d) in addition, ...

2.6 Translate the following collocations into Czech:

1. Taking on more staff is a big problem, which means that our costs are likely to go up
too. -

2. I see your point, but can we do it? —

3. What is more, we cannot afford it now. —

4. However, there is one more option. —

5. Do not forget that we have to keep the budget under control. —

6. I know what you mean, but do you think we can compromise here? —

2.7 First, read the article below and state if the following statements are
true or false:

1. Persuading is a skill that business people need to employ daily ....

2. The modern concept is that persuasion is just the hard sell of a salesperson with a
customer, but an important skill to use throughout our professional life ....

3. Inside a company you might need persuasion to misuse resources to your own pro-
jects ...

4. Inside a company you might need persuasion to motivate people who report directly
to you ....

5. Behavioural elements are useful for persuading and influencing in terms of finding
common ground with the listener....

6. Behavioural elements are useful for persuading and influencing in terms of not ap-
pealing to emotions as well as using logical arguments ....

27



MARKETING AND SELLING — ADVERTISING

7. These persuading skills can be acquired quickly, and many come artificially with
practice and experience ....

) [sawosramioo ]

Repeat the main rules for persuading. Try to persuade some of your speaking partners.
Choose any situation, in which you can practice persuading skills.

2.4 Grammar - Selling changes. Giving reasons and results.
Selling changes — language functions

V obchodni komunikaci spolecnosti potfebuji v urcitych situacich informovat své za-
kazniky o urcitych nutnych zménéch, které planuji provést.

Pro tento druh komunikace pouzivaji zdvorilé fraze, které signalizuji urcité nadchazejici
zmeny, jedna se o nasledujici: as our regular customer, your business is important to us,
we hope to continue working with us in the future, thank you for your feedback, your
comments are helping us to improve the quality of service.

Také uvadéji divody, ve kterych odavodiuji své chystané zmény, jedna se o nasledujici:
due to the economic situation, since the business is not doing well at the moment, owing to
lack of interest, due to heavy taxation, as the costs keep rising, since more than ten com-
panies are competitors on the market, because there is a delivery problem.

Nakonec spole¢nosti vysvétluji také nasledky zmiriovanych zmén, jedna se nejcastéji o
naledujici: consequently staff are replaced, as a result of recent drop in sales, therefore
we will need to abandon the project.

GRAMMAR EXERCISES
2.8 Complete the sentences with owing to, due to, since, as or because:
1 ... an increase in the price of components, please find attached our revised quotation.
2 ... the price of components increased last month, we have revised our quotation.
3 ... safety is our priority, we have no choice but to cancel the order.
4 Unfortunately, our company cannot supply your order ... new laws on export in Asia.

5 Our company finally agreed on 1 January ... no other date was available.
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6 Future orders will be shipped from Bratislava ... supply chain restructuring.

B

Prepare a short announcement regarding some changes in a company or department you
are working in. Use some of the above-stated language functions for your reasoning.

2.5 Presentation relating to a marketing plan

A marketing plan is an indispensable part of the overall marketing activity. It should be
available in a verbal form as an official company document. It is advised to formulate a
mission statement and a vision statement. The mission statement characterises the com-
pany’s business and its range. The vision statement outlines the firm’s idea of its future.
These statements should appear in the opening part of the plan. This will then proceed to
state the firm’s objectives. Those should contain the overal objectives followed by specific
actions. The plan must be realistic and prepared for one year ahead. The objectives must be
quantifiable. Time and their accomplishment are important too. A marketing plan may con-
tain the following: situational analysis, SWOT analysis, objectives, strategy, action pro-
gramme, financial forecast and controls.

Zdroj: Kaftan, M., New English in Economics. Karolinum, Praha 2010.

oter 7]

1 Explain what a marketing plan is.

2 What form of a marketing plan is recommended?
3 What is a mission statement?

4 What is a vision statement?

5 What should objectives contain?

6 What is marketing plan made up of? Explain in your own words their key activities.

LEXIS

2.9 Translate the following terms in Czech:
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1 situational analysis ...

2 SWOT analysis ...

3 objectives ...

4 strategy ...

5 action programme ...

6 financial forecast ...

7 controls ...

2.10 Complete the presentation with the most suitable word:

a) quantifiable b) mission statement c¢) verbal form d) objectives e) vision statement f)
realistic g) specific actions h) overall marketing activity

Ladies and gentleman. Today we are going to talk about a marketing plan.

As you know, a marketing plan is an indispensable part of the 1... My suggestion is as
follows - it should be available ina 2... as an official company document. I certainly advise
you to formulate a mission statement and a vision statement. Let us now turn to the first
one.

The 3... chracterises the company’s business and its range. And now moving on to the
latter. The 4... outlines the firm’s idea of its future. I would personally suggest placing
these statements in the opening part of the plan. Following, this will then proceed to state
the firm’s 5... Those should contain the overal objectives followed by 6...

As in any other business, the plan must be 7... and prepared for one year ahead. The
objectives must be 8... Keep in mind that time and their accomplishment are important too.

And finally, let me conclude in the following manner. A marketing plan usually contains
the following elements: situational analysis, SWOT analysis, objectives, strategy, action
programme, financial forecast and controls.

That brings us to the end of our brief presentation. Feel free to ask me any questions, I
will happy to answer them. Thank you for your attention.
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2.6 Test
1. simple. The client doesn't want an ad that's too
fancy/complicated
e keep
o keepit

e arrange it

2. planning is essential in creating an effective ad cam-
paign.

e ahead
e in advance

e advance

3. We got a lot of new customers because of a spot we on
a local (TV) station.

e ran
e set
e Jocated
4. We have to create a for a new deodorant.

e campaign
e company
e approach

5. It's hard to develop a campaign for a product that many people per-
ceive

e negative
e negatively

e bad
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6. This campaign is ( = focused/based) on the concept of
family.

e centered
e concerned
e called

7. Our biggest creative is to associate the product cha-
racteristics with the spirit of Christmas.

e challenge

e call
e check
8. Advertising has to be consistent with the brand " ".(=

the way the company/advertiser wants the brand to be seen/perceived).

e sight
e visual
e vision
9. I don't think their ads are visually . ( =1 don't think
they look good).
e accepted
e appaling

e appealing

10. Very often in advertising, there's more to a message than meets
. ( = there is also a hidden message).

e your eye
e theeye

e aneye
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T

2.7 Key

LEXIS-EXERCISES

LEXIS

2.1 Match the words 1-8 with a-h to make advertising collocations:

4.b)

6. h)

2.2 Translate the following advertising terms into Czech:

. firmy délaji reklamu

. firmy maji poselstvi (vzkaz)

. firmy chtéji se dostat k novym zakazniktiim
. firmy vytvéareji image znacky

. firmy zvysuji podil na trhu

. firmy spoustéji kamparn

. firmy vstupuji na novy trh

. firmy uvadéji novy produkt na trh

. kampanie dodrzuji vzorec AIDA

10. zvySuji povédomi, vytvareji zajem, vytvareji touhu, a chtéji, aby spotiebitelé podnikly
kroky

O 00 9 O Lt A W N =~

2.3 Find the most suitable advertising collocations:
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. a) conduct market studies

. b) satisfy customers needs

. help customers ¢) purchase products
. d) build image

. €) deliver the goods

. f) meet consumer needs

. g) set competitive prices

~N O R WD

2.4 Match the phrases in exercise 2.3 with the definitions below:

. ship the product to the customer ... deliver the goods

. decide how much people will pay ... set competitive prices

. provide something people require ... meet consumer needs

. give credit or easy terms of payment ... help customers purchase products

. give people what they want ... satisfy customer needs

. encourage positive feelings about your product ... build brand image

. collect information on what people are buying and selling ... conduct market studies

N O v AW -

2.5 Match the pairs of expressions that have a similar meaning:

1c)2a)3d)4b)

1. Keep in mind that a)and as aresult ...

2. which means that ...  b) I know what you mean. However, ...
3. What’s more, ... c¢) Don’t forget that

4. I see your point. But ... d) in addition, ...

2.6 Translate the following collocations into Czech:

1. Taking on more staff is a big problem, which means that our costs are likely to go up
too. — Prijeti vétSiho poctu zaméstancu je velkym problémem, coz znamena, Ze nase
naklady pravdépodobné narostou.

2. I see your point, but can we do it? — Chapu Vas, ale dokazeme to udélat?

3. What is more, we cannot afford it now. — A co vic, ted’ si to nemuzeme dovolit.

4. However, there is one more option. — Existuje vSak jesté jedna moznost.

5. Do not forget that we have to keep the budget under control. — Nezapomiite, Ze musime
udrzet rozpocet pod kontrolou.

6. I know what you mean, but do you think we can compromise here? — Vim, co tim mys-
lite, ale muzeme zde udélat kompromis?
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2.7 First, read the article below and state if the following statements are
true or false:

1. Persuading is a skill that business people need to employ daily. T

2. The modern concept is that persuasion is just the hard sell of a salesperson with a
customer, but an important skill to use throughout our professional life. F

3. Inside a company you might need persuasion to misuse resources to your own pro-
jects. F

4. Inside a company you might need persuasion to motivate people who report directly
to you. T

5. Behavioural elements are useful for persuading and influencing in terms of finding
common ground with the listener. T

6. Behavioural elements are useful for persuading and influencing in terms of not ap-
pealing to emotions as well as using logical arguments .... F

7. These persuading skills can be acquired quickly, and many come artificially with
practice and experience .... F

GRAMMAR-EXERCISES
2.8 Complete the sentences with owing to, due to, since, as or because:

1 owing to / due to an increase in the price of components, please find attached our
revised quotation.

2 as / since / because the price of components increased last month, we have revised
our quotation.

3 as / since / because safety is our priority, we have no choice but to cancel the order.

4 Unfortunately, our company cannot supply your order owing to / due to new laws on
export in Asia.

5 Our company finally agreed on 1 January as /since / because no other date was avai-
lable.

6 Future orders will be shipped from Bratislava owing to / due to supply chain restructu-
ring.

LEXIS

2.9 Translate the following terms in Czech:
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1 situational analysis ... situaéni anlyza

2 SWOT analysis ... analyza SWOT

3 objectives ... cile

4 strategy ... strategie

5 action programme ... akéni program

6 financial forecast ... finan¢ni predpovéd’

7 controls ... kontroly

2.10 Complete the presentation with the most suitable word:

1 overall marketing activity 2 verbal form 3 mission statement 4 vision statement 5 ob-
jectives 6 specific actions 7 realistic 8 quantifiable

Ladies and gentleman. Today we are going to talk about a marketing plan.

As you know, a marketing plan is an indispensable part of the overall marketing acti-
vity. My suggestion is as follows - it should be available in a verbal form as an official
company document. I certainly advise you to formulate a mission statement and a vision
statement. Let us now turn to the first one.

The mission statement characterises the company’s business and its range. And now
moving on to the latter. The vision statement outlines the firm’s idea of its future. I would
personally suggest placing these statements in the opening part of the plan. Following, this
will then proceed to state the firm’s objectives. Those should contain the overal objectives
followed by specific actions.

As in any other business, the plan must be realistic and prepared for one year ahead.
The objectives must be quantifiable. Keep in mind that time and their accomplishment are
important too.

And finally, let me conclude in the following manner. A marketing plan usually contains
the following elements: situational analysis, SWOT analysis, objectives, strategy, action
programme, financial forecast and controls.

That brings us to the end of our brief presentation. Feel free to ask me any questions, I
will happy to answer them. Thank you for your attention.
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2.7.1 TEST
1. simple. The client doesn't want an ad that's too
fancy/complicated
e keep
o Kkeepit

e arrange it

2. planning is essential in creating an effective ad cam-
paign.

e ahead
e in advance
e advance

3. We got a lot of new customers because of a spot we on
a local (TV) station.

e ran
e set
e Jlocated
4. We have to create a for a new deodorant.

e campaign
e company
e approach

5. It's hard to develop a campaign for a product that many people per-
ceive

e negative
e negatively
e bad

6. This campaign is ( = focused/based) on the concept of
family.
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e centered
e concerned
e called

7. Our biggest creative is to associate the product cha-
racteristics with the spirit of Christmas.

e challenge

o call
e check
8. Advertising has to be consistent with the brand " ".(=

the way the company/advertiser wants the brand to be seen/perceived).

e sight
e visual
e vision
9. I don't think their ads are visually . (=1 don't think
they look good).
e accepted
e appaling

e appealing

10. Very often in advertising, there's more to a message than meets
. ( = there is also a hidden message).

e youreye
e theeye
e aneye
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woreroy [T

V kapitole Marketing and Selling — Advertising jsme se zaméfili na téma spojené s re-
klamou, pfesvédcovanim a marketingovym planem. V oblasti firemni komunikace jsme se
naucili jak spravné argumentovat v situacich spojenych se zménami, které spolecnosti po-
trebuji sdélit svym zakaznikam.

39



ENTREPRENEURSHIP - ENTREPRENEURS

3 ENTREPRENEURSHIP - ENTREPRENEURS

[El[wenrmneommprory ]

Kapitola je vénovana tématu Entrepreneurship - entrepreneur a vysvétluje zakladni typy
spolec¢nosti, zalozeni spolecnosti a popisuje piibeh spé§ného podnikatele.

Gramaticka ¢ast se zaméfuje na spravné pouziti modalnich sloves.

Hewewrory ]

V této kapitole se naucim:

e Slovni zasobu k tématu Entrepreneurship - entrepreneur,
e Vysvétlit rizné typy spolecnosti,

e Popsat zalozeni firmy,

e Spravné popsat piibéh podnikatele,

e Pouzivat modalni slovesa.

]
_

Company, entrepreneur, entrepreneur’s stories, entrepreneurship, forms of companies.

3.1 Vocabulary

acknowledged uznavany

act in the name of a company jednat jménem spoleCnosti
acomplish uspét

authenticity of signatures pravost podpist

all property cely majetek

amount of the registered capital vySe zakladniho jméni
be liable up to the amount ruCit do vyse

bear liability for the obligations rucit za zavazky
board of directors predstavenstvo

brand znacka

breach of obligations poruseni zavazku
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CEO

vykonny predseda spolecnosti

common commercial name

spole¢né obchodni jméno

commercial name

obchodni jméno

commercial register

obchodni rejstiik

conquer dobyt, ziskat
entrepreneur podnikatel/ka
competition konkurence
entrepreneur podnikatel/ka
establish zalozit
executive jednatel
founder zakladatel

general commercial partnership

vetrejna obchodni spole¢nost

identity of members

urceni spolecnikti

influence

ovlivnit

invent

vynalézt

joint stock company

akciova spolecnost

limited liability company

spolecnost s ru¢enim omezenym

limited partnership

komanditni spolecnost

member

spole¢nik

memorandum of association

spoleCenska smlouva

monetary / non-monetary contribution

penézity / nepenézitd vklad

notarial deed

notarsky zapis

number of shares of a specific nominal
value

pocet akcii o urcité jmenovité hodnote

panache elegance, Smrnc

paying up splaceni

persuade presvedcit

prowess zrucnost, obratnost
registered capital is divided zakladni kapital je rozvrzen
retailer maloobchodnik

sign podepsat

signature podpis

stipulate stanovit

stock akcie

supervisory board

dozor¢i rada

3.2 Starting a company

How to Set Up a Company in the Czech Republic

A Korean company is considering the entry to the Czech market. It operates in two other
eastern European countries, such as Hungary Poland and Slovakia. Although all countries
in question are members of the EU, the company needs to follow the specific law of the
given country when establishing a company or subsidiaries. A representative of the Cham-
ber of Commerce is answering some relevant questions asked by the Korean manager who
is in charge of the company’s expansion plans and strategies.
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“What is the most common form of company in the Czech Republic?”

“The most common form of company in the Czech Republic is a limited liability
company. It is established by a partnership contract or, in the case of one founder only, by
a foundation decree.”

“What is the first necessary step to take in order to establish a company?”

“The establishment of a company is preceded by a general meeting, at which its found-
ers sign the company’s foundation documents, whereby they set out the essentials concern-
ing the future company, such as its trade name, the place where it will be based, its core
business, the amount of its authorised capital, the person or persons who will be its statutory
bodies, etc. The establishment of a company always has the form of a notarial deed. The
fee for drawing up the notarial deed upon the establishment of a company depends on the
amount of the company’s authorised capital and the number of annexes attached to the
notarial deed. Usually it ranges between CZK 5,000 and CZK 10,000.”

“Well, I understand, but there must be some other important steps...?”

“Yes, you are absolutely correct. In the period between the foundation meeting, the first
general meeting of the company, and the filing of a petition for its registration, several more
steps must be taken depending on the type of the company. First is obtaining the registration
of the company’s business, if the object of its activities is a trade requiring a trade licence;
second obtaining another licence under special legislation, most frequently in the area of
health care, for example for running a non-state health-care facility. As a rule, a trade li-
cence is required for the registration of all company forms in the Commercial Register; the
registration fee is CZK 1,000.”

“Is it necessary to open a bank account?”

“Yes, indeed. Opening the company’s bank account and the deposition of the company’s
authorised capital, obtaining confirmation from the bank that the stated amount of author-
ised capital has been deposited, provided the capital is formed by monetary contributions
of partners. Monetary contributions to the company’s authorised capital is the most typical
and, at the same time, the quickest way. A company’s authorised capital may also be cre-
ated by non-monetary contributions, but in that case an expert opinion is required, which
may slow down the process of company establishment.”

“And what about the petition for entry in the Commercial Register?”

“Petitions for entry in the Commercial Register must be made on the approved form and
the signature of the person acting on behalf of the company must be officially authenticated.
Petitions are filed with a locally competent Court in compliance with the address of the
company’s registered office. The petition for entry must be supported by documents prov-
ing the facts to be entered in the Commercial Register, e.g.: registered office — contract of
lease or consent of the property owner to the location of the company’s registered office in
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his/her premises; authorised capital — bank confirmation of the deposition of authorised
capital; confirmation by the deposit administrator; extract from the crime register according
to the foreigner’s citizenship and his/her permanent residence, usually from his/her mother
country, and a certificate of no criminal records of persons figuring as the company’s stat-
utory body; subject of business — extract from the Trade Register or another licence or
authorisation issued in accordance with special regulations — if the trades are covered by
the Trade Register, there is no need to submit a written extract to the Court, etc. A fee of
CZK 6 000 in stamps must be paid when filing the petition. The statutory term for making
the entry is 5 working days from filing day. Representation by a lawyer is not required
when filing a petition for entry in the company or the trade registers, nevertheless, consid-
ering the formal requirements concerning certain documents submitted for entry, such rep-
resentation is recommended. The average period needed for the establishment of a com-
pany in the Czech Republic was shortened to approx. 30 days.”

“Where can we find some relevant information on the existing names of companies in
the Czech Republic?”

“The name of the company must not be interchangeable with that of any existing com-
pany entered in the Commercial Register. The entrepreneur must therefore verify the firm
— the intended name of the new company preferably on the Internet, on the website of the
Commercial Register, www.justice.cz.”

“I do not speak Czech; therefore, I would like to know if it is possible to find more de-
tails in English?”

“All forms to be completed by petitioners wishing to have their company entered in the
Commercial Register can be found on the website of the Ministry of Justice at www.jus-
tice.cz In the Obchodni rejstiik (Commercial Register) section on the left there is the sub-
section Formulafe ke stazeni (Downloadable forms). All forms, including annexe forms
and instructions for their correct completion, are available there. The forms are designed
so as to facilitate their interactive completion. Unfortunately, a serious setback for foreign
businessmen and entrepreneurs is that the forms are available only in Czech. It goes without
saying that all documents being submitted to the court (Commercial Register), including
annexes, must be in Czech, and foreign-language documents must be provided with an
authenticated translation. In the case of certain foreign documents (e.g. statement of no
criminal record, extract from the Commercial Register), a special form for higher-level ver-
ification of the document certifying the authenticity of the office which issued the docu-
ment, usually termed as Apostille or superlegalisation, is required.”

“Thank you very much your advice and good luck with setting up your business in the
Czech Republic.”

Zdroj: doingbusiness.cz: How does call center ousourcing affect the us economy? [online].[cit. 2018-16-11].
Dostupné z: https: //https://issuu.com/ppagency/docs/db_aj_2015_web/38
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7]

1 What is the most common form of company in the Czech Republic?

2 What is the first step to establish a company in the Czech Republic?

3 What is the next step?

4 Is a bank account necessary for establishing a company?

5 Explain and describe how to file the petition for entry in the Commercial Register in
the Czech Republic.

6 What is the name of the website foreign investors or companies can use for finding
relevant information on the documents and forms, which are necessary to complete

and file?

LEXIS

44

3.1 Translate the following expressions into English:
1. zalozit firmu ...

2. rucit dovyse ...

3. jednat jménem spolecnosti ...

4. zapsat spolecnost do obchodniho rejstriku ...

5. zalozitis ucet ...

6. vypis z trestniho rejstiiku ...

7. ovétit dokument ...

8. podepsat zakladaci smlouvu

3.2 Complete the missing words:

a) reaching, b) non-profit organizations, ¢) background information, d) profit,
e) target, f) business goal
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A business plan is a formal statement of a set of 1. , the reasons why
they are believed attainable, and the plan for 2. those goals. It may also
contain 3. about the organization or team attempting to reach
those goals. The business goals may be defined for profit or for 4.
For profit business plans typically focus on financial goals, such as 5. or
creation of wealth. Non-profit and government agency business plans tend to focus on or-
ganizational mission which is the basis for their governmental status or their non-profit,
tax-exempt status, respectively—although non-profits may also focus on optimizing reve-
nue. Business plans may also 6. changes in perception and brand-

ing by the customer, client, tax-payer, or larger community.

3.3 Build the compound words

1. business ...

2. non-profit ...

3.setupa...
4. ... deed
5. .... contribution

6. open a ... account

7. ... register

8. ... capital

9. ... office

10. file a petition for ...

3.4 Complete the gaps in the table below:

Noun Verb Person
.............................................................. shareholder
................................. to lose
foundation |
................................. to invest
................................. to contribute
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borrowings | L |

3.5 Read the following sections, which you can come across in the Czech
Commercial Code. They all deal with basic legal forms of companies in the Czech
Republic. Following the reading complete the table below:

General commercial partnership

A general commercial partnership is an entity in which at least two persons carry on
business activity under a common commercial name and bear joint and several liabilities
for the obligations of the partnership with all their property.

Limited partnership

A limited partnership is an entity in which one or more partners are liable for the part-
nership’s obligations up to the amount of the unpaid parts of their contributions, as recorded
in the Commercial Register (limited partners) and one or more partners are liable for the
partnership’s obligations with their entire property (general partners). Unless it is stipulated
otherwise later, limited partnerships shall be governed as appropriate (mutatis mutandis)
by the preceding provisions on general commercial partnerships and the legal status of lim-
ited partners shall be governed mutatis mutandis by the provisions on limited liability com-
panies.

Limited liability company

A limited liability company is an entity whose registered capital is made up of contribu-
tions agreed upon in advance by its members (participants). A limited liability company
may be founded by one person (an individual or an entity). A limited liability company
may have a maximum of 50 members.

Joint stock company

A joint stock company is a company whose registered capital (capital stock) is divided
into a certain number of shares of a specific nominal value. The company is liable for the
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breach of its obligations with all its entire property, but the shareholder is not liable for the
obligations of the company.

Main characteris-

tics Liability Capital

Legal form

General com-
mercial partner-
ship

Limited part-
nership

Limited liability
company

Joint stock com-
pany

3.3 Entrepreneurs’ stories

In the whole world the greatest entrepreneurs are those who revolutionize business,
open opportunities for others and change the way we think and live. Their impact is felt for
generations. They are known for their greatest accomplishments in the specific line of
business. They inspire others and lead to newer and newer inventions, which make
consumers’ life much easier. They make all their best to meet the modern customers’ needs
and establish the long term relationship based on brand loyalty. There is no doubt
that the greatest entrepreneurs of modern times come from the IT background. The obvious
evidence of that is one of most acknowledged visionary Steve Jobs and his company that
is one of the top companies in the USA and the world. Steve Jobs’ and the Apple Inc. story
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are a well-documented. Steve Wozniak combined his computing genius with Steve Jobs’
marketing prowess and, voila, Apple was born. Ultimately, their impact was to make
personal computing much more user-friendly, while their entrepreneurial talent was in
creating product loyalty and in owning every aspect of the computer. When Wozniak and
Jobs built their first Macintosh, they had no idea of the impact it’d have on user-friendly
personal computing. Then came their revolutionary operating system, which gave users
a desktop, windows and a mouse. If it weren’t for these elements, we might still be using a
C: prompt.

Conquering both the hardware and software worlds was quite a feat, but Apple took it
another step. Since Jobs’ return as CEO and the subsequent reinvention of the brand, Apple
has led the digital music revolution, selling more than 110 million iPods and 4 billion songs
from its iTunes online store. (Apple announced in February that iTunes is the No. 2 music
retailer in the United States, behind mega-retailer Wal-Mart.) Apple even entered the mo-
bile phone market successfully with its revolutionary iPhone. No other competitor has
conquered so many markets with the panache that Apple Inc. has, and that wouldn’t have
been possible without Steve Jobs. Jobs also founded Pixar Animation Studios (origi-
nally The Graphics Group, which he bought from George Lucas) and served as CEO
until it was acquired by Walt Disney Company in 2006, making Jobs the largest indivi-
dual Disney shareholder.

Zdroj: SUCCESS: Greatest Technology Entrepreneurs of All Time. [online]. 2013 [cit. 2013-01-21]. Dostupné z:
http://www.success.com/articles/199----greatest-technology-entrepreneurs-of-all-time#Jobs

7]

1 What qualities do the most successful entrepreneurs have in common?
2 What background do the modern and successful entrepreneurs come from?
3 What invention did Steve Jobs and his friend Steve Wozniak come up with?

4 What impact did their invention have on the further development of computers and
software?

5 What other markets did Steve Jobs enter and how successful was his company there?
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3.6 Complete the missing collocations:
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Words in Czech Noun in English Adjective in English
1. podnikatel/podnikatelsky
2. dobrodruzstvi/dobrodruzny
3. rozhodnuti/rozhodny
4. uspech/uspesny
5. finance/finan¢ni
6. stress/stresujici
3.7 Find the opposites:

1. hard-working a)

2. honest b)

3. organised C)

4. cooperative d)

5. generous e)

6. calm f)

7. professional 2)

3.8 Which word is different?

1. founder bounder creator maker
2. entrepreneur entrepreneurship entrepreneurial entity
3. brand branding brandy brand loyalty
4. customer client clientele seller

3.9 Translate the following expressions into Czech:

1. mit vizi

6. vstoupit na novy trh

niku

2. zorganizovat tym nadSenych spolupracov-

7. ptipravit marketingovou kamparni

3. ziskat financni prostiedky

8. ziskat nové zdkazniky

4. presvédcit okoli o svém produktu

0. udrzovat si pozitivni image

5. vytvoftit dlouhodoby vztah k znacce

10. mit chut’ dal expandovat
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3.4 Grammar - Modal verbs
Anglictina uziva modalni slovesa k vyjadfeni riznych vyznama.
Can - be able to

1. Vyjadiuje schopnost vykonavat néjakou €innost.

She can communicate very well. - Umi velmi dobfe komunikovat.

I can't cook at all. - Neumim vibec vafit.
2. Vyjadiuje moznost néco udélat, protoze to okolnosti dovoluji.

We can ski in the morning. There's enough snow now. - Rano si muzeme zalyzo-

vat. Je uz dost sn¢hu.

I am not all right. I cannot go to work. - Neni mi dobfe. Nemohu jit do prace.
3. Vyjadiuje urcitou pravdépodobnost, ze mize néco nastat.

Be careful. You can fall. - Bud opatrny. Mze§ spadnout.

He can't come so soon. He'll go on foot. - Nemuze piijit tak brzy. PGjde pésky.
4. Vyjadiuje svoleni k n¢jaké Cinnosti.

Mum, can I go out? - Mami, mohu jit ven?

You can borrow my car. - Muzes si pujcit moje auto.

May — be allowed to

1. Vyjadiuje svoleni k néjaké Cinnosti.
May I take it? - Smim si to vzit?

2. Vyjadiuje moznost, predpoklad, ze se néco stane.
He may come late. - Mozna pfijde pozdé.

Must — have to

1. Vyjadiuje povinnost, kterou ukladame sami sob& nebo druhé osobé. Jde vzdy o
nasi vuli.
I must tidy my office. It looks awful. - Musim si uklidit pokoji¢ek. Vypada hrozné.
2. Vyjadiuje durazné doporuceni.
You must go to bed. You are tired. - Musis jit do postele. Jsi unaveny.
3. Vyjadiuje jistotu mluvciho, jeho presvédceni.
They must be very happy now. - Jisté jsou ted’ moc Stastni.
4. Have to — se pouziva pro ur€ité nafizeni zvenci, napt. You have to drive on the left
in the UK.

Pozor: Opakem must je need not.
You needn't help me. - Nemusi§ mi pomahat.
Ale: You mustn't help me. - Nesmi§ mi pomahat.

Modalni (zptusobova) slovesa obvykle v angli¢tiné nedokazi vyjadfit rizné gramatické
Casy. Vyjimkou z tohoto pravidla je modalni could:
She could calculate very well. - Uméla velmi dobfe pocitat.

V ostatnich pripadech je tieba uzit k vyjadieni modalnich vyznama takzvané tvary

opisné. Napiiklad:
She has never been able to negotiate well. - Nikdy neuméla dobie vyjednavat.
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Was I allowed to take it? - Smél jsem si to vzit?
I had to tidy my office. - Musel jsem si uklidit kancelaf.

Should

1. Vyjadiuje doporuceni nebo radu.

You should sell the house. — M¢l byste prodat dam.

2. Zapor vyjadiuje doporuceni ¢i radu néco ned¢lat.

You should not accept the offer. — Nemél byste tu nabidku pfijmout.

Nyni nasleduji dalsi priklady k uvedenym pravidlim:

I must send the email.

Can you send us the goods?

You mustn’t sign the contract.

GRAMMAR-EXERCISES
3.10 Underline the correct words:
1. You must call them / must to call them right now.
2. You don’t must / mustn’t turn off this computer.
3. Do you can/ can you speak Chinese?
4. Why I should / should I work late on Friday?

5. T'will can/ will be able to help you when I have time.
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6. You shouldn’t / don’t should speak like that to a client.
7. Must you / Do you must go so soon?
8. When we can / can we have our meeting?
3.11 Translate into English:
1. You mustn’t send it.
2. I'must go to Prague tomorrow.
3. You could call us. We were at home.
4. She had to buy something.
5. May I asky ou for help?

6. Next week I will have to go on a business trip.

HIEZT

3.5 Test

[

. The greatest entrepreneurs are those who ... business.

® (Ccasc

revolutionize
e terminate

2. They had no idea of the ... it had on the IT business.
e fact

e pact

e impact

3. There is no ... that the greatest entrepreneurs of modern times come from
the IT background.

alternative

e answer
doubt

4. Walt Disney Company ... another business.
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entailed
required
acquired

Brand ... is a long term process in each business.

penalty
loyalty
disloyalty

. Apple Company has created many ... products.

user-able
user-madly
user-friendly

Steve Jobs ... his company a couple of decades ago.

finded
founded
found

It is very easy to do business with Apple Company, they are so...

slow to respond
bureaucratic
professional

Steve Jobs served as ... in his Pixar Animation Studios.

PA
CEO
MD

10. ... is a person who owns shares.

Steakholder
Shareholder
Shareower

11. A business plan will show what an entrepreneur ....

intends
representing
represents
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12. A good business idea is for the establishment of an inde-
pendent existence.

e information
e an aspect
e astarting point

13. Every entrepreneur has to ... important information.

e perform
® pay
e seek

14. The financial planning ... various calculations.

e includes

e makes

e results
15. With regard to financial planning needs, it is necessary to consider with
a client.

e payment behaviour
e expenditure
e activities

16. After the performed calculations it is known whether one can expect a profit
or....

e expenditure

e Joss
VAT

o] e

3.6 Key

LEXIS
3.1 Translate the following expressions into English:
1. set up a company

2. be liable up to the amount
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3. act in the name of the company

4. register a company in the Commerical Register
5. open a bank account

6. extract from the crime register

7. verify the document

8. sign the memorandum of association

3.2 Complete the missing words:

a) reaching, b) non-profit organizations, ¢) background information, d) profit,
e) target, f) business goals

A business plan is a formal statement of a set of 1. f) , the reasons why they are believed
attainable, and the plan for 2. a) those goals. It may also contain 3. ¢) about the organization
or team attempting to reach those goals. The business goals may be defined for profit or for
4. b) For profit business plans typically focus on financial goals, such as 5. d) or creation
of wealth. Non-profit and government agency business plans tend to focus on organiza-
tional mission which is the basis for their governmental status or their non-profit, tax-ex-
empt status, respectively—although non-profits may also focus on optimizing revenue.
Business plans may also 6. e) changes in perception and branding by the customer, client,
tax-payer, or larger community.

3.3 Build the compound words

1. business plan

2. non-profit organisation

3. set up a company

4. notarial deed

5. non/monetary contribution
6. open a bank account

7. commercial register

8. registered capital

9. registered office

10. file a petition for entry in the Commercial Register
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3.4 Complete the gaps in the table below:

Noun Verb Person
share to share shareholder
loss to lose loser
foundation to found founder
investment to invest investor
contribution to contribute contributor
borrowings to borrow borrower
3.6 Complete the missing collocations:
Words in Czech Noun in English Adjective in English
1. podnikatel/podnikatelsky lentrepreneur entrepreneurial
2. dobrodruzstvi/dobrodruznyjadventure adventurous
3. rozhodnuti/rozhodny decision decisive
4. uspech/uspesny success successful
5. finance/finan¢ni finance financial
6. stress/stresujici Stress stressful

3.7 Find the opposites:

1. hard-working a) lazy

2. honest b) dishonest

3. organised c¢) disorganised
4. cooperative d) uncooperative
5. generous €) mean

6. calm f) nervous

7. professional g) unprofessional

3.8 Which word is different?

1. founder bounder creator maker
2. entrepreneur entrepreneurship entrepreneurial entity
3. brand branding brandy brand loyalty
4. customer client clientele seller

3.9 Translate the following expressions into Czech:

1. to have a vision

6. to enter a new market

rators

2. to organize a team of enthusiastic collabo-

7. to prepare a marketing campaign

3. to raise funds

8. to win/gain/obtain/get new customers

your product

4. to persuade/convince the environment of

0. to maintain a positive image

56




Martina Chylkova, Janusz Karpeta - Cizojazycna ptiprava Al 2

E. to establish a long-term relationship to thel0. to have the desire to expand further
rand

GRAMMAR-EXERCISES
3.10 Underline the correct words:

1. You must call them / must to call them right now.

2. You don’t must / mustn’t turn off this computer.

3. Do you can/ can you speak Chinese?

4. Why I should / should I work late on Friday?

5. Iwill can / will be able to help you when I have time.

6. You shouldn’t / don’t should speak like that to a client.
7. Must you / Do you must go so soon?

8. When we can / can we have our meeting?

3.11 Translate into English:
1. Nesmite to odeslat. ...
2. Musim jet zitra do Prahy. ...
3. Mohl jste ndm zavolat. Byli jsme doma. ...
4. Musela néco koupit. ...
5. Smim Vas pozadat o pomoc? ...

6. P1isti tyden budu muset jet na sluzebni cestu.

57



ENTREPRENEURSHIP — ENTREPRENEURS

3.6.1 TEST

58

1

. The greatest entrepreneurs are those who ... business.

cease
revolutionize
terminate

They had no idea of the ... it had on the IT business.

fact
pact
impact

. There is no ... that the greatest entrepreneurs of modern times come from

the IT background.

alternative
answer
doubt

. Walt Disney Company ... another business.

entailed
required
acquired

Brand ... is a long term process in each business.

penalty
loyalty
disloyalty

. Apple Company has created many ... products.

user-able
user-madly
user-friendly

Steve Jobs ... his company a couple of decades ago.

finded
founded
found
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>

. Itis very easy to do business with Apple Company, they are so...

slow to respond
bureaucratic

professional

9. Steve Jobs served as ... in his Pixar Animation Studios.

e PA

e CEO

e MD

10. ... is a person who owns shares.

e Steakholder
e Shareholder
e Shareower

11. A business plan will show what an entrepreneur ....
e intends

e representing

e represents

12. A good business idea is for the establishment of an inde-
pendent existence.

e information
e an aspect
e astarting point

13. Every entrepreneur has to ... important information.

perform
¢ pay
o seek

14. The financial planning ... various calculations.

e includes

e makes

e results
15. With regard to financial planning needs, it is necessary to consider with
a client.

e payment behaviour
e expenditure
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e activities

16. After the performed calculations it is known whether one can expect a profit
or....

e expenditure
e loss
e VAT

Ellsmormapmory ]

Kapitola Entrepreneurship — Entrepreneur vysvétlila problematiku spojenou se za-
kladanim firem, uspéSnym podnikatelem a klicovou terminologii. V gramatické ¢asti jsme
zvladli spravné pouzit zptisobova slovesa.
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4 ENTREPRENEURSHIP - BUSINESS ORGANISATION
AND PEOPLE

owvmmeeroy [

Kapitola se zamétuje na to, jak spravné pojmenovat, vysvétlit a popsat jednotlivé typy
firem a jejich bézné obchodni aktivity. Poté se budeme vénovat také obchodnim schiizkam,
nejdulezitéjsi slovni zasobé a frazim.

V gramatické Casti se zaméfujeme na standartni komunikacni situace, se kterymi se ma-
nazefi nejCasté]i setkavaji.

ooy ]

V této kapitole se naucim:

e Slovni zasobu k tématu typy spolecnosti,

e Jak spravné porozumét jednotlivym typum spolecnosti véetné jejich typickych akti-
vit,

e Zvladnout a spravné vést obchodni jednani v anglicting.

Global franchise, meeting, non-profit organisation, partnership, private limited com-
pany, public limited company, sole trader, state-owned enterprise.

4.1 Vocabulary

absent nepiitomny

abstain from (voting) zdrzet se (hlasovéni)
accomplish dosahnout

acquisition koupé, nakup

address oslovit

adjourn odlozit, prerusit
agenda program, pofad jednani
AGM (annual general meeting) valna hromada
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allocate rozdélit, pridélit
AOB (any other business) razné

apologies omluva

ballot hlasovat

board of directors predstavenstvo
boardroom zasedaci sifi spravni rady
brainstorm hledat nové napady
buyout skoupeni, vyplaceni
casting vote rozhodujici hlas
chairperson/chair predseda

clarify objasnit, vyjasnit
clarification objasnéni, vyjasnéni
closing remarks poznamKy na zaver
collaborate spolupracovat
commence zalit

comment vyjadrit se
conference porada, jednani
conference hall zasedaci sin
confidential divérny

consensus shoda, souhlas
deadline konecny termin
designate jmenovat, vybrat, urCit
formality formalita

franchise fransiza

grievance stiznost

guest speaker hostujici mluvci
implement zavest, provest

joint venture

podnik se spoleCnou majetkovou ucasti

limited partnership

komanditni spolecnost

Itd. (limited liability) S.I.0.

mandatory povinny

minutes zapis, oficialni zprava
motion predlozit navrh
objectives cile

opening remarks poznamky na zacatku
participant ucastnik

partnership spoleCnost, sdruzeni

plc. (public limited company)

vefejna / obchodni akciova spolecnost

private limited company

S.I.0.

proxy vote hlas v zastoupeni
punctual dochvilny

recommend doporucit

show of hands hlasovéani zdvizenim ruky
sole trader zivnostnik

takeover prevzeti (firmy)

trading partnership obchodni spole¢nost
unanimous jednohlasny

vote hlas
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4.2 Types of organisation

Entrepreneurs and managers share some of the same characteristics, but also show im-
portant differences. In terms of business, entrepreneurs start companies and see the big
picture, entreprepreneurs take risks, but tend to get bored by the day-to-day details of run-
ning a company.

Managers, on the other hand, tend to risk-averse, and enjoy running their departments
day-to-day.

A typical route for an entrepreneur is to start a business, grow it and then, when it is
successful, sell it to another — usually much larger company. The entrepreneur keeps the
money from the sale of the business and uses it to start another business.

Business organisations of different types are partially defined in Unit 3, however let us
now consider some more examples of each.

Sole trader

A skilled manual worker, such as a builder, who is self-employed. A professional per-
son, such as writer or graphic designer, who is freelance.

Partnership

A group of lawyers who share an office or a small group of friends who start a web
design company.

Private limited company

A small or medium sized business in which the shares are privately held, perhaps by the
founder and few early investors. Most family businesses are like this, but there are some
examples amongst larger companies: Virgin, PwC, IKEA, LiDL, Lego, Bosch, Rolex, etc.

Public limited company

A large business whose shares are listed on a stock exchange. Examples are big, well-
known companies, such as BP, Vodafone, Barclays and Tesco.

Global franchise

A business that operates under a franchise system. Franchises represent a wide variety
of business interests, such as fast food outlets, hotels, courier services, cleaning services,
etc. Examples are Burger King, Super B, UPS, and Green Mop.

Non-profit organisation
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A charity, a foundation, or an NGO (non-governmental organisation). Examples are the
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation, Amnesty, the Red Cross, and many small church and
charitable organisations.

State-owned enterprise

A business owned by the state, such as the post office, the railways, etc.

Zdroj: Sharma, P., a Emmerson, P., 2014. The Business Pre-Intermediate Teacher’s Book. London, Macmillian. ISBN 978-0-230-
43784-5.

7]

1 Who is a sole trader? Describe his /her some typical activities.

2 What is a private limited company? Describe it and give some examples.
3 What is a public limited company? Desribe it and give some examples.
4 What is a global franchise? Describe it and give some examples.

5 What is a non-profit organisation? Describe it and give some examples.

6 What is a state-owned enteprise? Describe it and give some examples.

LEXIS
4.1 Complete the suitable type of organisation:
1. My hair designer has his own business. Heis a ...
2. My doctor works in ... there are two other doctors and a general practitioner.

3. We often eat at a local Vietnamese restaurant. It is ... , owned and run by one Viet-
masese family.

4. My brother invested some money in CEZ. It is a well-known ... in the Czech Repub-
lic.

5. There are Europcar car rental offices in many countries around the world. It is a global

6. The YMCA is a ...and is concerned with youth development.
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4.2 Choose the best answer:

1. a start-up is when an entrepreneur: a) buys a new car b) sets up a new business c) buys
another comany

2. amerger is when two companies : a) agree to become one b) share a new activity c)
buy another company

3. an acquisition is when an entrepreneur a) starts a company b) buys a company c) sells
the company

4. a takeover is when a company a) starts another company b) buys another company c)
sells another company

5. a buyout is when a company is bought by a) its won bank b) its own customers c¢) its
own staff

6. a joint venture is when two companies a) agree to become one b) share a new activity
¢) buy another company

B

Act a short dialogue in pairs, in which you will deal with the description of some com-
panies you know in terms of their type and activities. If necessary, go online and present
your findings.

4.3 Meetings

Many young managers still may it find difficult to encounter different meetings
with their staff members. In the following interview, the journalist is talking to a senior
manager who has a lot of experience in that field of corporate communication.

Journalist: My first question is how do managers call a meeting in businesses or are
they called to a meeting?

Senior manager: There are a number of ways that you may call or be called to a
meeting.Some meetings are announced by e-mail, and others are posted on bulletin boards.
If a meeting is announced at the end of another meeting, it is important to issue a reminder.
A reminder can also come in the form of an e-mail or notice. Verbal announcements
or reminders should always be backed up by documented ones. The date, location, time,
length, and purpose of the meeting should be included.
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Journalist: So, what is then the second step?

Senior manager: In order to keep the meeting on task and within the set amount
of time, it is important to have an agenda. The agenda should indicate the order of items
and an estimated amount of time for each item.

Journalist: Managers’ job is to delegate different tasks. Is it possible with the mee-
tings?

Senior manager: Sure, it is. The person in charge of calling and holding a meeting may
decide to allocate certain roles to other staff members. Someone may be called upon to take
the minutes, someone may be asked to do roll call, and someone may be asked to speak on
a certain subject. This should be done either in person, or in an e-mail.

Journalist: Yes, [ see. So how should a manager start a meeting?

Senior manager: Whether you are holding the meeting or attending the meeting it is
polite to make small talk while you wait for the meeting to start. You should discuss things
unrelated to the meeting, such as weather, family, or weekend plans. Following that,
once everyone has arrived, the chairperson, or whoever is in charge of the meeting should
formally welcome everyone to the meeting and thank the attendees for coming.

Journalist: How do you check that everyone is in the meeting?

Senior manager: If the meeting is a small group, it is probably unnecessary to take
attendance out loud. The person who is taking the minutes will know everyone personally
and can indicate who is present and who is absent. In a larger meeting, it may be necessary
to send around an attendance sheet or call out names.

Journalist: How do all participants know what is going to be discussed?

Senior manager: Some people who hold meetings prefer to pass around copies of the
agenda, and others will post a large copy on a wall, or use an overhead projector. No matter
which format is used, attendees should be able to follow the agenda as the meeting
progresses. Before beginning the first main item on the agenda, the speaker should provide
a brief verbal outline the objectives.

Journalist: Who should take the minutes?

Senior manager: Anyone, including you, may be assigned to take the minutes at
a meeting. Often someone who is not participating in the meeting will be called upon to be
the minute-taker.

Journalist: Does the slogan “Time is money” hold true in the meeting?
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Senior manager: One of the most difficult things about holding an effective meeting
is staying within the time limits. A good agenda will outline how long each item should
take. A good chairperson will do his or her best to stay within the limits for meetings.

Journalist: When do managers need to turn to voting?

Senior manager: When issues cannot be resolved or decisions cannot be easily made,
they are often putto a vote. Most votes occur during meetings. Votes can be open,
where people raise their hands in favour or in opposition of the issue. In an open vote, the
results are evident immediately. Other votes, such as who should be elected to take on a
certain role, are private or closed. During private votes, attendees fill out ballots and place
them in a box to be counted. The results may not be counted until after the meeting.

Journalist: And finally, the meeting is about to end, how do you close the meeting?

Senior manager: There are different reasons why a meeting comes to an end.
Time may run out, or all of the items in the agenda may be checked off. Some meetings
will end earlier than expected and others will run late. The odd time, a meeting may be cut
short due to an unexpected problem or circumstance.

Journalist: What else should be mentioned at the end of the meeting?

Senior manager: The end of the meeting is also the time to thank anyone who has not
been thanked at the beginning of the meeting, or anyone who deserves a second thank you.
Congratulations or Good-luck can also be offered here to someone who has experi-
enced something new, such as receiving a promotion, getting married, or having a
baby. In the closing remarks, the chairperson, or participants may want to discuss the date
and time for the next meeting, when the minutes will be available, or when a decision
should be made by. This is also the time to give contact information, such as how to send
a question by e-mail or who to call regarding a certain issue.

Journalist: Thank you very much for your time!

Zdroj: Business English: Preparing for a Meeting. [online]. EnglishClub, 1997, 2013 [cit. 2013-01-21]. Dostupné
z: http://www.englishclub.com/businessenglish/meetings-preparations.htm

e,

1 What is the typical structure of the corporate meeting?
2 What does the senior manager mean by the agenda?

3 Who looks after the minutes?

4 What are some of the good qualities of the chairperson?

5 What happens at the end of the meeting?
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LEXIS

4.3 Complete the email and use the following expressions below:

competitors, duties, meeting, attend, expecting, make arrangements, purpose

To: jana.k@hotmail.com

cc: dana@hotmail.com; tomas @hotmail.com; nela@hotmail.com

From: peter @hotmail.com
Subject: Meeting

Hi Everyone,

We will be having a ... next Monday from 1:00 PM-3:00 PM in Room 7.All supervisors
are expected to ... . The ... of the meeting is to discuss the upcoming trade fair. As you

probably have heard, this could be one of our busiest trade fairs to date. There are already
five hundred... coming to the trade fair from all Furopean countries and even from North
America. We are also ... some Asian representatives too. Please... to have other staff mem-

bers cover your ... during the meeting.
Thank you,

Peter

4.4. Translate the following sentences into English:

1. Dovolte, abych zahajil dnesni poradu...

2. Prvnim bodem jednani bude...pak bude
nasledovat. ..

3. Nyni budeme hlasovat...kdo je pro, proti,
kdo se zdrzel hl asovani?

4. Méa nékdo dal$i navrhy?

5. Zapis z porady vam poS§lu emailem. ..

4.5. Match the words with the correct definitions?

1. absent a) the person who leads or

2. confidential b) not present

3. board of directors ¢) in complete agreement

4. adjourn d) due date for completion

5. consensus e) close a meeting presides at a meeting
6. chairperson f) private
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7. deadline g) group of elected members of an or-
ganization/company who meet to make
decisions

8. unanimous h) general agreement

4.6 Translate the following statements into Czech:

1. On the agenda today. .. 6. Sorry to hold the meeting up.

2. Okay everybody, thanks for coming. 7. 1just wanted to see what kind of fee-
dback you’ve got.

3. Just a couple of things on the agenda. 8. Anybody got anything else they want to
raise before we wrap up?

4. If we could go through them in order... | 9. Ireally strongly disagree.

5 Right then... let’s get down to business. | 10. Any other business.

4.4 Grammar - Expressions for meetings

Béhem porad Ize v anglicting volit z celé fady jednotlivych sloves, spojeni ¢i jinych
vyrazl pro presné vyjadreni:

a) nazord: In my opinion..., in my view..., if you want to know my opinion..., the way
Iseeit..., I feel..., I think..., I believe..., I suppose..., I assume..., I guess..., it seems,
appears to me that... .

b) souhlasu: I agree..., I can go along with that..., I think we are in agreement on
that..., I share your view... .

c¢) nesouhlasu: I do not think it is a good idea..., I cannot go along with you there...,
I am afraid I cannot agree with you..., I am sorry but I do not agree at all...,
I absolutely disagree..., I think you are wrong... .

d) pteruSeni: May I interrupt you for a moment?..., I am sorry to interrupt you...,
break in, but..., May I come in at this point?..., Excuse me, may I ask a
question?..., I do not want to interrupt, but..., I would like to add something here if 1
may..., If I might just add something here... .

d) navrha: I would like to make a proposal..., I would like to make a suggestion..., I
suggest..., I propose..., I would like to put forward a different proposal..., Would not it
be a good idea that we..., Let us first have a look at..., Why do not we...?

Nyni nésleduji dalsi piiklady.
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I believe we can sign the contract today.

I am afraid; I do not go along with your quotation.

Let us put forward another proposal, which you might find quite acceptable.

GRAMMAR-EXERCISES

4.6 Compelete the suitbale prepositions:

. Tagree ... their price.

. ... my opinion, you are wrong.

. Derek, do not break ... , I need to finish my thought!
. Could we have a vote ... it?

. Today I would like to go ... the main points quickly, we are running out time.

4.7 Use the suitable word in English:

. May I (vyrusit) ...... for a while?

. Could we (prejit k dal§imu bodu jednani)... ... ?

. Our team has to absolutely (nesouhlasit) ... ... with your proposal!
. How is going to keep the (zapis z jednani) ...... today?

. Now, let us have a (hlasovat) ...... on the new project!

. Who is in (pro) ...... and who is (proti) ....... please raise your hands!
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7. (Zdrzel se nékdo hlasovani) ...... ?
8. Today we are meeting to (hledat nové napady)......
9. Please treat this information (daveérné) ......

10. We have come (jednohlasné) ... ... to the conclusion that we would buy another 10%
in their business.

4.8 Complete the minutes with the suitable word:

a) confirmed, b) commence, c¢) opinion, d) significance, e) vote, f) unanimous, g)
objected, h) opted for, i) chairman

Minutes of the meeting held at the Head Office of MacKenzie, on Jan.1

1. The ... opened the meeting, 2. ... the minutes of the last meeting andstressed the 3.
...of coming to a decision, then he asked Mrs. Susan to 4. ... the discussion by giving the
others his .... on the new project. Fortunately, everyone 5. ...a quick decision, so all parti-
cipants did not have to 6. ... on accepting the procedure in terms of implementing the new
project. No one 7. ... and shortly afterwards the 8. ... decision was taken.

oty ]

4.5 Test

1. Bruce, the chairperson, ran out of time and he was forced to ... the conference.

accomplish

adjourn

confirm
2. Thomas will ... as soon as all of the board members take a seat.

e commence
e brainstorm
e move

3. The meeting will ... two hours.

e take place
e take
e break
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72

4.
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o

In a meeting it is possible to ... that a counterpart is telling the truth by
observing his/her body language.
infect
detect
effect
. Susan, if you have a ... please wait until Sophie has finished speaking.

comment
implement
detent

. Our top managers we'll be discussing this year's profits at the ...

AOB
AGM
AMM

. In her ... the chairwoman thanked everyone for doing such a good job this week.

agenda
motion
closing remarks

Before we ... I want to remind everyone to sign the attendance form on the way
out.

cooperate
collaborate
wrap up

. T'was away on business in Turkey last month, so ... was assigned.

proxy-vote
participant
ballot

. The board members of AVEX Company couldn't come to a ... so they had to

hold a vote last week.

motion
completion
consensus
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e [e]

4.6 Key

LEXIS
4.1 Complete the suitable type of organisation:
1. My hair designer has his own business. He is a sole trader.

2. My doctor works in partnership there are two other doctors and a general practiti-
oner.

3. We often eat at a local Vietnamese restaurant. It is private limited company, owned
and run by one Vietmasese family.

4. My brother invested some money in CEZ. It is a well-known public limited company
in the Czech Republic.

5. There are Europcar car rental offices in many countries around the world. It is a global
franchise.

6. The YMCA is a non-profit organisation and is concerned with youth development.
4.2 Choose the best answer:

1. a start-up is when an entrepreneur: a) buys a new car b) sets up a new business c)
buys another comany

2. amerger is when two companies : a) agree to become one b) share a new activity c)
buy another company

3. an acquisition is when an entrepreneur a) starts a company b) buys a company c)
sells the company

4. a takeover is when a company a) starts another company b) buys another company
c) sells another company

5. a buyout is when a company is bought by a) its won bank b) its own customers c¢) its
own staff

6. a joint venture is when two companies a) agree to become one b) share a new activity
¢) buy another company
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4.3 Complete the email and use the following expressions below:

competitors, duties, meeting, attend, expecting, make arrangements, purpose

To: jana.k@hotmail.com

cc: dana@hotmail.com; tomas @hotmail.com; nela@hotmail.com

From: peter @hotmail.com
Subject: Meeting

Hi Everyone,

We will be having a meeting next Monday from 1:00 PM-3:00 PM in Room 7. All su-
pervisors are expected to attend. The purpose of the meeting is to discuss the upcoming
trade fair. As you probably have heard, this could be one of our busiest trade fairs to date.
There are already five hundred competitors coming to the trade fair from all European

countries and even from North America. We are also expecting some Asian representatives
too. Please make arrangements to have other staff members cover your duties during the

meeting.
Thank you,

Peter

4.4. Translate the following sentences into English:

1. Dovolte, abych zahajil dnesni poradu...

Let me commence / start / begin /
open our today’s meeting...

2. Prvnim bodem jednani bude...pak bude
nasledovat. ..

The first item on the agenda will be...
then will follow...

3. Nyni budeme hlasovat...kdo je pro, proti,
kdo se zdrzel hlasovani?

Now, we are going to have a vote...
who is in favour, who is against, any
abstentions?

4. Méa nékdo dalsi navrhy?

Has anyone / does anyone have
further proposals /suggestions?

5. Zapis z porady vam poslu emailem. ..

I will send you the minutes by
email...

4.5. Match the words with the correct definitions?

1. absent b)
2. confidential f)
3. board of directors g)
4. adjourn e)
5. consensus h)
6. chairperson a)
7. deadline d)
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| 8. unanimous | ©) |

4.6 Translate the following statements into Czech:

1. Na dneSnim programu jednani je... 6. Omlouvam se, ze zdrzuji poradu.

2. Diky vSem, ze jste dorazili. 7. Chtél jsem vidét, jakou mate zpétnou
vazbu.

3. Nékolik véci na program jednani. 8. M4 jeste nekdo néco, nez budeme kon-
Cit?

4. Kdybychom si je mohli projit potadé... | 9. Opravdu musim velice nesouhlasit.

5. Tedy dobra... pojd'me na véc. 10. Rizné.

GRAMMAR-EXERCISES

4.6 Compelete the suitbale prepositions:

1. I agree with their price.

2. In my opinion, you are wrong.

3. Derek, do not break in, I need to finish my thought!

4. Could we have a vote on it?

5. Today I would like to go over the main points quickly, we are running out time.
4.7 Use the suitable word in English:

1. May I interrupt for a while?

2. Could we move to the next item on the agenda?

3. Our team has to absolutely disagree with your proposal!

4. How is going to keep the minutes today?

5. Now, let us have a vote on the new project!

6. Who is in favour and who is against please raise your hands!

7. Any abstentions?

8. Today we are meeting to brainstrom.

9. Please treat this information confidentially.
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10. We have come unanimously to the conclusion that we would buy another 10% in
their business.

4.8 Complete the minutes with the suitable word:
a) confirmed, b) commence, ¢) opinion, d) significance, e) vote, f) unanimous,
g) objected, h) opted for, i) chairman
Minutes of the meeting held at the Head Office of MacKenzie, on Jan.1

1. The i) chairman opened the meeting, 2. a) confirmed the minutes of the last meeting
andstressed the 3. d) significance of coming to a decision, then he asked Mrs. Susan to 4.
b) commence the discussion by giving the others his ¢) commence on the new project.
Fortunately, everyone 5. h) opted for a quick decision, so all participants did not have to
6. e) vote on accepting the procedure in terms of implementing the new project. No one 7.
g) objected and shortly afterwards the 8. f) unanimous decision was taken.

4.6.1 TEST

1. Bruce, the chairperson, ran out of time and he was forced to ... the conference.

accomplish

adjourn

confirm
2. Thomas will ... as soon as all of the board members take a seat.

e commence
e brainstorm
e move

3. The meeting will ... two hours.

take place
e take
break

4. In a meeting it is possible to ... that a counterpart is telling the truth by
observing his/her body language.

infect
detect
effect

76



Martina Chylkova, Janusz Karpeta - Cizojazycna ptiprava Al 2

S. Susan, if you have a ... please wait until Sophie has finished speaking.

comment
e implement

e detent

6. Our top managers we'll be discussing this year's profits at the ...
e AOB

e AGM

e AMM

7. In her ... the chairwoman thanked everyone for doing such a good job this week.

e agenda
e motion
¢ closing remarks

8. Before we ... I want to remind everyone to sign the attendance form on the way
out.

e cooperate
e collaborate
e wrap up

9. I was away on business in Turkey last month, so ... was assigned.

proxy-vote
e participant
ballot

10. The board members of AVEX Company couldn't come to a ... so they had to
hold a vote last week.

e motion
e completion
e consensus

E e A

V kapitole Entrepreneurship — Entepreneur jsme se naucili, jak spravné pojmenovat
jednotlivé typy spolecnosti, co konkrétné délaji a uvedli jsem si nejdilezitéjsi jazykové i
komunikacni prvky spojené s obchodnim jednanim a také zapisem ze schiizky.
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5 BUSINESS COSTS - CUTTING COSTS

[El[wenrmneommprory ]

Kapitola se soustied’uje na oblast firemniho a rodinného rozpoctu, fixni naklady a vari-
abilni naklady. U firmy ukazuje mozné nasledky hospodateni v pfipadé poklesu zakaznik,
u rodiny pak pfi poklesu pfijml. Nabizi se urcita doporuceni a feseni. V druhé Casti se
budeme vénovat obchodnimu vyjednavani. Budeme nacvicovat typické situace v obchodé
a klicova slovni zasoba.

Gramaticka ¢ast procvicuje budouci Cas, Casové spojky a podminkovou vétu prvniho
typu.

Hlewewpmory ]

Po absolvovani kapitoly budu umét:

e Aktivné pouzivat slovni zasobu k rozpoctu, nakladim, penézim,

e Spravné vést obchodni vyjednavani v anglicing,

e Vyjmenovat a vysvétlit nejcastéji pouzivané terminy z oblasti rozpoctu, naklada a
penéz,

e Pouzivat budouci Cas, ¢asové spojky a podminkovou vétu prvniho typu.

_

Business budget, business costs, cutting costs, fixed costs, investments, negotiating, per-
sonal budget, variable costs.

5.1 Vocabulary

alternatives alternativy
amplify rozvest
arbitration rozhod¢i fizeni
bargain vyjednavat
bottom-line spodni hranice
collective spole¢ny
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compensate nahradit, vykompenzovat
comply vyhovét, splnit
comprise zahrnovat, obsahovat, tvorit
concession ustupek

conflict resolution feSeni konfliktu
confront Celit, postavit se
consensus shoda, souhlas
cooperation spoluprace

counter proposal protinabidka
counterattack protiutok

counterpart protéjSek

demands pozadavky

deadlock mrtvy bod

dispute spor, hadka, pie

be entitled to mit pravo na ...
flexible pruzny, piizpusobivy
haggling smlouvani, dohadovani, handrkovani se
hostility nesouhlas, odpor

high -ball ucinit vysoky pozadavek
impulse podnét, stimul
indecisive vahavy, nerozhodny
leverage pusobeni, vliv

log - rolling vzajemné vychvalovani
low - ball ucinit nizky pozadavek
mislead uvest v omyl, oklamat
mutual vzajemny

objective cil

point of view pohled

pressure tlak

proposal navrh

receptive ochotny, pfistupny
resentment zlost, vztek

resistance odpor

resolve resit

tactics taktika

tension napéti, pnuti

trade- off vymeénny obchod
ultimatum ultimatum

unrealistic nerealisticky

victory vitézstvi

yield ustoupit
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5.2 Personal and business budgets. Fixed costs, variable costs,
investments. Cost cutting and its consequences. Money
loss.

Company finances are not very different from family budgets. The numbers are just
bigger. Companies and families both know approximately how much money will come in
and go out. Busineses can forecast sales revenues and production costs, and families can
plan based on their salaries and living costs.

In both cases, problems begin when revenue decreases. For companies it is often due to
a fall in sales: perhaps prodcuts are too old, or competition is increasing. Family income
can also go down if bonuses or overtime decrease, or when people are unemployed or ill.
If an adult stops work, some variable costs will decrease: tax and transport for example.
But most payments, like the house, the children’s education, energy bills and telephone
bills are fixed. In business, even if sales are down 50%, there are still costs like rent, ad-
ministration and maintenance. When total costs are higher than revenues, both companies
and families have to consider what they can cut.

Families can cut out evenings at the restaurant, or cinema. Or they can do without a new
TV or a foreign holiday. Companies can cut advertising, travel and training budgets and
freeze temporary contracts.

But cutting these variable costs often takes time to have an effect. In the short term, both
families and companies often need to use their reserves, that is, take cash from their savings
and investments. If the difficulties continue, they can borrow money using their assests,
that is by re-mortgaging their home, office or factory. By using these reserves or assets,
individuals and businesses can survive until their situation improves. Losses are relative:
losing several million pounds is unthinkable for a family, but may be a small percentage of
medium-sized company’s revenues.

Corporate and personal finance are also similar where investment is concerned. Some-
times the best way to reduce costs is to spend more money. A family that is having difficulty
paying its energy bills can invest in better insulation and a more modern heating system.
Companies that invest in new equipment or better software can reduce long-term costs.
This kind of one-time cost is often the explanation when well managed companies appear
to be losing money.

In conclusion, a family or a company that has temporary financial difficulties can re-
cover quickly if the problem is managed carefully.

Zdroj: Allison, J., a Emmerson, P., 2017. The Business Pre-Intermediate Student’s Book. London, Macmillian. ISBN 978-0-230-
43780-7.
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1 What is different between company finances and family budgets?
2 What is a cause of cutting costs for companies and families?

3 What can companies and families in this situation?

4 Explain what fixed costs are.

5 Explain what variable costs are.

6 How can companies and families survive hard times?

LEXIS

5.1 Translate into Czech the following terms:

. revenue
. turnover

. income

. cost of goods sold

. gross profit

. overheads

. operating profit

. interest tax

. depreciation

10. net profit after tax
11. dividends

12. retained profit

O 0 1 N Lt A W N~

5.2 Match the following terms with the defintions given below:

1. turnover 2. revenue. 3. cost of goods sold 4. income 5. overheads 6. gross
profit 7. retained profit 8. operating profit 9. dividends 10. net profit after
tax 11. depreciation

a) the money coming into the company from sales ...

b) the amount of money that a company does in a period of time ...

¢) money that is earned from doing work or received from investments ...

d) these costs are volume-related, the more you produce, the higher the cost ...
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e) company’s profit from selling goods or services before costs not directly
related to producing them, for example interest payments and tax, are substrac-
ted ...

f) regular costs e.g. rent, heating etc...

h) a company's profit from its normal business activities, not including any ear-
ned from investments or sales of assets, calculated by taking operating expenses
away from gross income ...

1) the proces of losing value ...

J) the real profit that the business makes ...

k) the profit of a company that is paid to the people who own shares in it ...

1) this is what remains to invest in the business in the future ...

) [sawosramioo ]

With your friends discuss what fixed and variable costs they have. Engage in a con-
versation and compare your findings in pairs, then present them to the class.

5.3 Grammar - Future forms and first coditional. Time expressi-
ons

Pro vyjadieni obecné budoucnosti pouzijeme v angli¢iné pomocné sloveso WILL.
Otazku vytvorime piehozenim slovesa WILL s podmétem, napt. Will you help me, please?

Zapor tvorime pomoci NOT — WILL NOT (WON’T)

WILL pouzivame, kdyz:

1. udalost v budoucnosti nemtzeme ovlivnit, napt. The sun will rise and set tomorrow.
2. se jedna o domnénku ¢i predpoklad, napt. I think John will arrive in London at I p.m.
3. se jedna o spontanni rozhodnuti, napt. Hold on, I will come with you then.

4. se jedna o slib, napt. I will not come late tonight.

Naopak sloveso GOING TO se poji nejcastéji s urcitym planem ¢i zamérem. Vyjadiuje
tak naSe plany ¢i aktivity, které jsme si jiz naplanovali do budoucnosti, napt. I am going to
buy a new coat. Otazku tvotime piehozenim slovesa BE na zaCatek véty, napt. Are you
going to sell the house? Zapor tvofime pomoci NOT, napt. I am not going to pay for it,
apod.
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Podminkova véta prvniho typu se tvoti nasledovng¢:

swr

Véta vedléjsi - jednoduchy prit.¢as / Véta hlavni + WILL, | napt. If you pay for lunch
today, I will invite you next time.

Pouziva se nejCastéji pro vyjadieni podminky, ktera je z hlediska pravdépodobnosti re-
alizovatelna a predpokladame, Ze nastane ¢i bude splnéna.

V anglictiné se také objevuji Casové spojky. Plati pravidlo, ze po téchto spojkach
WHEN, UNTIL, AS SOON AS, BEFORE a AFTER (patfi sem i IF) nasleduje jednodu-
chy pfitomny Cas, ve vété hlavni se objevi WILL, napt. I will not get a job until I pass my
exams., apod.

Nyni nasleduji dalsi priklady k vySe uvedenym pravidlim:

I will buy the shares of that company.

They are going to reduce their costs this year.

If you happen to know her email, then send her that message immediately. / When they
arrive at the airport, I will come and pick them up.

GRAMMAR - EXERCISES
5.3 Use the correct forms of future tenses:
I.We ....... probably have to increase our prices next year.

2. Quick! Catch it! It ... fall.
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3.1...... have the roast chicken, please.
4. We ...... open a new facility in Romania next month.
5.1....... confirm the details by email.

5.4 Use before, if and unless in the following situations:

1. I will deliver on Friday, ... you order today.

2. I am sorry, I cannot deliver ... Friday .... you pay for express delivery.

3. OK, I will give you 30 days’ credit ... you place regular orders.

4. Tam sorry, I cannot give you 60 days’ credit ... you pay the full price.

5. OK, I will change the colour to red or blue ... you give me two weeks’ notice.

6. I am sorry, I can’t add your company logo ... you order more than 500 pieces.

5.5 Work in pairs, practice the 1st conditional:
1. If the new service is too expensive. ..

2. We will increase the price if...

3. We will invest in new software, if ...

4. If customers do not pay their bills, ...

5. If we need more rpducts to be sold, ...

6. The bank will not give a loan if...

5.4 Negotiating

Today, in our next business communication discussion for our young entrepreneurs we
are dealing with a few golden rules to successful negotiations with our business
communication expert from Multitask Communication Enterprise based here in the UK.

Journalist: How much time do business people need for negotiations?

Business communication expert: Always try to negotiate for at least 15 minutes. Any
less than that and it is unlikely that either party has had enough time to fairly consider the

84



Martina Chylkova, Janusz Karpeta - Cizojazycna ptiprava Al 2

other side. Generally, the size or seriousness of the negotiation determines the amount of
time needed to negotiate it. Setting a time limit is a good idea. Approximately 90% of
negotiations get settled in the last 10% of the discussion.

Journalist: Who shall begin the negotiation?

Business communication expert: Always offer to let the other party speak first. This
is especially important if you are the one making a request for something such as a raise.
The other party may have overestimated what you are going to ask for and may
actually offer more than what you were going to request.

Journalist: In your opinion, what is the most appropriate communication behavior in
negotiations?

Business communication expert: Always respect and listen to what your opponent has
to say. This is important even if he or she does not extend the same courtesy to you. Do
your best to remain calm and pleasant even if the other partyis displaying frustration
or anger. Remember some people will do anything to intimidate you.

Journalist: Could you tell our young entrepreneurs some other communication tips in
negotiations?

Business communication expert: Acknowledge what the other party says. Eve-
ryone likes to know that what they say is important. If the other party opens first,
use it to your advantage, by paraphrasing what you have heard. Repeat their important
ideas before you introduce your own stronger ones.

Journalist: According to some communication theories, verbal and non-verbal
communication is important. Does the same theory apply to business negotiations?

Business communication expert: Yes, you are right. You should pay attention to your
own and your counterpart's body language. Make sure that you aren't conveying any nega-
tive body language.

Journalist: Could you mention some typical demonstrations of body language used in
business negotiations?

Business communication expert: Say, for instance, if your counterpart avoids eye
contact it might mean that he or sheis lying, not interested or not telling the whole
truth. Further, if someone shows serious eye contact it might suggest that the person
is trying to intimidate you or shows anger. In addition to that, if your business partner is
touching e.g. the face or fidgeting, that is a clear signal that he or she is nervous, lacks
confidence or is submissive. Finally, if he or she is nodding, that is a positive sign
showing agreement and willingness to compromise, or vice versa, if he or she is shaking
the head or turning away, that is rather a negative signal indicating frustration, disbelief or
disagreement with the given point.

85



BUSINESS COSTS — CUTTING COSTS

Journalist: Our time is up; well thank you for your practical insight of basic
skills required in modern business negotiations.

Business communication expert: You are welcome!

Zdroj: Business English: The Negotiation Process. [online]. EnglishClub, 1997, 2013 [cit. 2013-01-21]. Dostupné
z: http://www.englishclub.com/businessenglish/negotiations-process.htm

7]

1 How important is time in negotiations?

2 What is the turn-taking thing in negotiations like?

3 How should businesspeople behave in negotiations?

4 How important is body language in negotiations?

5 Can you name some typical demonstrations of body language in negotiations?

LEXIS

5.6 Complete the sentences and use the vocabulary listed above:

1. In the past it took over a) hostility b) bottom-line 1...

two days of negotiating for | ¢) consensus d) indecisive

the parties to come to a

..Today it is much quicker.

2. It was ... decision to | a) flexible b) mutual ¢c) un- | 2...

settle our differences out realistic d) victorious

of court.

3. According to commu- | a) tactic b) bargain c) re- 3.

nication experts one ... that | sistance d) tension

always works is to ask your

counterpart to speak first.

4. Our team would have | a)haggling b) concession 4...

more ... if we had some | c)leverage d) impulse

more recent information.

5. The other team was a) tension b) resistance c) 5.
. to our proposal until receptive d) hostility

we made our last de-

mand.

6. The representatives from | a) haggling b) conflict c) 6...

the other company were ... | dispute d) misleading

over the details of the con-

tract all day long yesterday.
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7. We were surprised by a) arbitration b) counter- 7.
the move our counterpart proposal c) yield d) am-
had made. We did not plify
expect them to ... so quic-
kly.
8. None of the parties was | a) collective b) bottom - 8.
willing to give in. There- line c) counterpart d) de-
fore, it was no surprise that | adlock
within twenty minutes
the negotiations had alre-
ady ended ina ...
9. The aim of the meeting | a) pressure b) coopera- 9.
is to find some areas of ... | tion ¢) victory d) ob-
jective
10. Our team had to have a | a) high-ball b) trade- off ¢) | 10.
break as the counterpart demands d) consensus
was planning to ...

5.7 Translate the following into English:

1. ucinit ustupek

2. udélat protinabidku

3. vyjednat lepsi podminky pro obchod

4. silny vyjednavac

5. dosahnout kompromisu

5.8 Which word is different?

1. negotiation arbitration bargaining haggling
2.demands low-ball high-ball burdens
3.aim objective disregard goal
4.avoid confront dodge evade

5.9 Translate the following statements into Czech:

1. I'm afraid I had something different in
mind.

6. That's not exactly how I look at it.

2. I'm prepared to compromise, but ...

7. In other words, you feel that ...

3. I think we can both agree that ...

8. I don't see any problem with/harm in
that.

4. That's a fair suggestion.

9. I'd have to disagree with you there.

5. Is that your best offer?

10. From my perspective ...
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5.5 Test

1. During negotiations, one should treat an ... with respect and consideration
at all times.

e friend
e comrade
e opponent

2. In "win-win'' negotiations, the two parties try to establish a common ...

e goal
e point
e destination

3. Before anyone starts negotiations it is wise to consider one's own ...

e bottom-line
e ultimatum
e clampdown

4. It may be possible to ... that a counterpart is lying by observing body language.

e infect
e detect
o cffect

5. The negotiating team intimidated the other company into accepting their terms
by ...to quit.

e endangering
e threatening
e jeopardizing

6. The opponent used last-minute ... such as acting as though he was "Mr. Nice

"

Guy".

e prank
e tricks
e tactics

7. According to professional literature on negotiations one key to ... conflict-reso-
lution is to deal with issues rather than personalities.

e cffective
e ineffective
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efficent

8. Our team had no "bargaining power" ... the other team of negotiators.

e compared to
e compared with
e comparison with

9. If one team wins and the other loses it is a ... strategy.

e win-win
e win-lose
loss-loss

10. If both teams have come to a deadlock, the outcome of the meeting is a
.. negotiation.

e Joss-loss
e win-win

e win-lose

N ]

5.6 Key

LEXIS

5.1 Translate into Czech the following terms:

1. revenue prijem, trzba, vynos
2. turnover obrat

3. income prijem

4. cost of goods sold naklady prodaného zbozi
5. gross profit hruby zisk

6. overheads rezijni naklady

7. operating profit provozni zisk

8. interest tax dan z uroku

9. depreciation pokles ceny

10. net profit after tax €isty zisk po zdanéni

11. dividends dividendy



BUSINESS COSTS — CUTTING COSTS

12. retained profit zadrzeny zisk

5.2 Match the following terms with the defintions given below:

a) the money coming into the company from sales 2. revenue

b) the amount of money that a company does in a period of time 1. turnover
¢) money that is earned from doing work or received from investments 4. in-
come

d) these costs are volume-related, the more you produce, the higher the 3. cost
cost of goods sold

e) company’s profit from selling goods or services before costs not directly
related to producing them, for example interest payments and tax, are substrac-
ted 6. gross profit

f) regular costs e.g. rent, heating etc. 5. overheads

h) a company's profit from its normal business activities, not including any ear-
ned from investments or sales of assets, calculated by taking operating expenses
away from gross income 8. operating profit

1) the proces of losing value 11. depreciation

J) the real profit that the business makes 10. net profit after tax

k) the profit of a company that is paid to the people who own shares in it 9.
dividends

1) this is what remains to invest in the business in the future 7. retained profit

GRAMMAR-EXERCISES

90

5.3 Use the correct forms of future tenses:

1. We will probably have to increase our prices next year.

2. Quick! Catch it! It is going to fall.

3. I will have the roast chicken, please.

4. We are going to open a new facility in Romania next month.
5.1 will confirm the details by email.

5.4 Use before, if and unless in the following situations:

1. I will deliver on Friday, if you order today.
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2.1 am sorry, I cannot deliver before Friday unless you pay for express delivery.
3. OK, I will give you 30 days’ credit if you place regular orders.

4. I am sorry, I cannot give you 60 days’ credit unless you pay the full price.

5. OK, I will change the colour to red or blue if you give me two weeks’ notice.

6. I am sorry, I can’t add your company logo unless you order more than 500 pieces.

LEXIS

5.6 Complete the sentences and use the vocabulary listed above:

1. In the past it took over
two days of negotiating for
the parties to come to a
..Today it is much quicker.

a) hostility b) bottom-line
¢) consensus d) indecisive

1. ¢) consensus

2. It was ... decision to
settle our differences out
of court.

a) flexible b) mutual c¢) un-
realistic d) victorious

2. b) mutual

3. According to commu-
nication experts one ... that
always works is to ask your
counterpart to speak first.

a) tactic b) bargain c) re-
sistance d) tension

3. a) tactic

4. Our team would have
more ... if we had some
more recent information.

a) haggling b) concession
¢) leverage d) impulse

4. c¢) leverage

5. The other team was

. to our proposal until
we made our last de-
mand.

a) tension b) resistance c)
receptive d) hostility

5. ¢) receptive

willing to give in. There-
fore, it was no surprise that
within twenty minutes
the negotiations had alre-
ady ended in a ...

line c¢) counterpart d) de-
adlock

6. The representatives from | a) haggling b) conflict c) 6. a) haggling
the other company were ... | dispute d) misleading

over the details of the con-

tract all day long yesterday.

7. We were surprised by a) arbitration b) counter- 7. ¢) yield

the move our counterpart proposal c) yield d) am-

had made. We did not plify

expect them to ... so quic-

kly.

8. None of the parties was | a) collective b) bottom - 8. d) deadlock
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9. The aim of the meeting
is to find some areas of ...
jective

a) pressure b) coopera-
tion ¢) victory d) ob-

9. b) cooperation

10. Our team had to have a
break as the counterpart
was planning to ...

a) high-ball b) trade- off c)
demands d) consensus

10. a) high-ball

5.7 Translate the following into English:

1. ucinit ustupek

to yield, make a concession

2. udélat protinabidku

to make a counteroffer

3. vyjednat lepsi podminky pro obchod

to negotiate better conditions for the
business

4. silny vyjednavac

a strong negotiator

5. dosahnout kompromisu

to reach a compromise

5.8 Which word is different?

1. negotiation arbitration bargaining haggling
2.demands low-ball high-ball burdens
3.aim objective disregard goal
4.avoid confront dodge evade

5.9 Translate the following statements into Czech:

1. Obavam se, ze jsem mél néco jiného na
mysli.

6. To neni pfesné tak, jak se na to divam.

2. Jsem pripraven udélat kompromis, ale

7. Jinymi slovy, pocit'ujete, zZe...

3. Domnivam, se, ze oba mizeme souhla-
sit, ze ...

8. Nemam s tim zadny problém.

4. To je férovy névrh.

9. V tomto bodu bych s Vami nesouhlasil.

5. Je to Vase nejlep§i nabidka?

10. Z mého pohledu. ..

5.6.1 TEST

During negotiations, one should treat an ...

at all times.

friend

comrade

opponent

with respect and consideration

2. In "win-win'' negotiations, the two parties try to establish a common ...

e goal
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e point
e destination
3. Before anyone starts negotiations it is wise to consider one's own ...

e bottom-line
e ultimatum
e clampdown

4. It may be possible to ... that a counterpart is lying by observing body language.

e infect
e detect
e cffect

5. The negotiating team intimidated the other company into accepting their terms
by ...to quit.

e endangering
e threatening
e jeopardizing

6. The opponent used last-minute ... such as acting as though he was '""Mr. Nice

"

Guy''.

e prank
e tricks
e tactics

7. According to professional literature on negotiations one key to ... conflict-reso-
lution is to deal with issues rather than personalities.

o effective
ineffective

efficent

8. Our team had no "bargaining power" ... the other team of negotiators.

compared to

compared with
e comparison with

9. If one team wins and the other loses it is a ... strategy.

e win-win

win-lose
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e Joss-loss

10. If both teams have come to a deadlock, the outcome of the meeting is a
... negotiation.

e Joss-loss
e win-win

e win-lose

Ellsmormapmory ]

V kapitole Business costs — Cutting costs jsme se zaméfili na to, jakym zptusobem
hledat moznosti jak uSetfit ve firemnim nebo rodinném rozpoctu, déale jsme se vénovali
fixnim a variabilnim nakladim. V neposledni fadé jsme procvicovali obchodni vyjedna-
vani. Zopakovali jsme si spravné pouziti budouciho Casu, ¢asovych vét a podminkové véty
prvniho typu.
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6 BUSINESS COSTS - PROFIT, LOSS AND PAYMENT

owvmmeeroy [

Kapitola navazuje na dovednosti ziskané v predchozi kapitole a podrobnéji se vénuje
klicové slovni zasobé v oblasti vykazovani finan¢ni vykonnosti spole¢nosti. Dale se zabyva
podrobné platebnimi podminkami v obchodé€ a zaméfuje se také na komunikacni situace
v této oblasti.

ooy ]

V této kapitole se naucim:

e Vyjmenovat a vysvétlit klicové dokumenty pro vykazovani finan¢ni vykonnosti spo-
le¢nosti,

e Porozumét terminiim v dokumentech tykajich se platebnich podminek,
e Vyjadiovat se k tématim spojenym s finan¢ni vykonnosti spolecnosti a platebnim
podminkam v obchodé.

L]
Business costs, financial performance, loss and payment, payment terms, profit.

6.1 Vocabulary

account ucet

assure ujistit

balance sheet vykaz zisku a ztrat
bankrupt insolventni

cancel zrusit

cash on delivery dobirka

cash flow statement vykaz pené€znich toku
confirm potvrdit

freeze zmrazit

gross margin hruba marze
income statement vykaz piijmua
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incur zpusobit, privodit
interest urok

invoice faktura

measure meéfit

operating expanses

provozni vydaje

outstanding balance

zbyvajici dluh

overdue

zpozdény

owe

dluzit

payment terms

platebni podminky

profit margin

ziskové rozpéti

reminder upominka sus
settle zaplatit, urovnat
suspend odlozit, prerusit
threat vyhrizka
turnover obrat

vendor prodejce
wholeseller velkoobchodnik

6.2 Financial performance

There are many different ways to measure financial performance, but all measures
should be taken in aggregation. Every transaction that a business gets involved with ulti-
mately finds its way into the accounting records and financial statements of the business.

In business there are essential two main types of financial reports (or "accounts"):

1. Financial accounting — which formally records, summarises and reports the trans-
actions of the business

2. Management accounting — which presents and analyses financial data to help ma-
nagement take decisions and monitor performance

Financial accounting and accompanying financial restatements focus on reports that a
business is required to produce.

The three main elements of financial accounts are:
INCOME STATEMENT

This measures the business' performance over a given period of time, usually one year.
It compares the income of the business against the cost of goods or services and expenses
incurred in earning that revenue.
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BALANCE SHEET

This is a snapshot of the business' assets (what it owns or is owed) and its liabilities
(what it owes) on a particular day - usually the last day of the financial year.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

This shows how the business has generated and disposed of cash and liquid funds during
the period under review.

If you were to look at the financial accounts of a public company you would also find
other elements that provide detailed information for investors, analysts and other users of
the accounts.They include:

e Directors report: includes a review of corporate governance & directors' pay

e Auditor's Statement: a report from the auditors with their opinion on whether the
accounts show a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the com-

pany

e Operating and Financial Review: a detailed report on the key financial and operational
performance of the latest financial review (a good place to pick up on corporate strategies
and objectives, market analysis etc)

e Notes to the Accounts: a significant amount of detailed information to support the
headline numbers in the Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement

Zdroj: Tutor2U: Introduction to Financial Statements. [online]. QM Careers, 2012. [cit. 2018-17-11]. Dostupné z:
https://www.tutor2u.net/business/reference/introduction-to-financial-statements

ozer ][]

1 How is financial performance measured?

2 What does financial accounting do?

3 What does management accounting do?

4 What are three elements of financial accounts?
5 What is an income statement?

6 What is a balance sheet?

7 What is a cash flow stamement?
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LEXIS

6.1 Complete the text with the words below:

a) cost of goods sold (COGS) b) gross margin c) operating expenses d) profit
margin €) turnover

Last year, Danny sold 80,000 cups, which means he had a 1. ... of $ 280,000
(80,000 @ $ 3,50). His 2. ... was $ 80,000, that is, $ 1per cup. So his 3....
(before fixed costs, tax, etc.) was 71%, or $2,50 per cup. After deducting
fixed costs or 4. ... like rent and energy of $100,000, Danny declared an
operating profit of $100,000. He paid $25,000 in taxes (25%), which left
net income of $75,000, a healthy 5. ...of 27%.

6.2 Find the suitable word for the following situations:
a) account b) interest c) invoice d) outstanding balance e) overdue f) settle

1. Hello, Mr Black, I am calling about your record of what you ordered and
what you paid.

2. There is an amount of money which you haven’t paid of $500.

3. We sent you our detailed list of money to pay on 1 December.

4. T am afraid it is very late — you were supposed to pay us two months ago.

5. The contract you signed allows us to charge you the cost of credit at 3%.

6. Could you please send us payment in full for your bill as soon as possible?

6.3 Payment terms

Payment terms are the conditions under which a vendor completes a sale. The payment
terms cover:

e When payment is expected
e Any conditions on that payment
e Any discounts the buyer will receive

Payment terms can apply to any party in the sale, from the wholesaler to the individual
consumer.

Now let us have a closer look at the most common invoice payment terms:

e PIA - Payment in advance

e Net 7 - Payment seven days after invoice date
e Net 10 - Payment ten days after invoice date
e Net 30 - Payment 30 days after invoice date
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e Net 60 - Payment 60 days after invoice date

e Net 90 - Payment 90 days after invoice date

e EOM - End of month

e 21 MFI - 21st of the month following invoice date

e 1% 10 Net 30 - 1% discount if payment received within ten days otherwise payment
30 days after invoice date

e COD - Cash on delivery

e Cash account - Account conducted on a cash basis, no credit

e Letter of credit - A documentary credit confirmed by a bank, often used for export

o Bill of exchange - A promise to pay at a later date, usually supported by a bank

e CND - Cash next delivery

e CBS - Cash before shipment

e CIA - Cash in advance

e  CWO - Cash with order

e 1MD - Monthly credit payment of a full month's supply

e 2MD - Monthly credit payment of a full month's supply plus an extra calendar
month

e Contra - Payment from the customer offset against the value of supplies purchased
from the customer

e Stage payment - Payment of agreed amounts at stage

Zdroj: Payment terms. [online]. [cit. 2018-17-11]. Dostupné z: https://examples.yourdictionary.com/payment-terms-
examples.html

7|

1 What are payment terms for?

2 What do payment terms usually cover?

3 Name and explain the most frequent payment terms.

LEXIS

6.3 Find the suitable expressions for payment terms:

a) payment in advance b) terms and conditions c) an early payment discount d)
settle the balance e) cash on delivery f) owe someone money g) 30 days* credit
h) a deposit

1. everything is explained in black and white ...

2. we need the payment before we ship the goods

3. you can give the delivery man cash or cheque

4. regular customers can pay one month after we send the invoice

5. but you can deduct 2% from the total if you pay in less than ten days ...
6. because it is a special order we will need 20% now ...
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7. you can pay the rest when you come to pick itup ...
8. do you remember I lent you $10 last month ...

6.4 Complete threats and promises:

1. Unless you ... within three days, we ... legal action. (pay, take)

2. Our CFO ... you a cheque as soon as he ... from Prague. (send, return).
3.1... our account after the bank ... our loan. (settle, confirm).

4. We ... your order if we ... your deposit within two weeks. (cancel, not re-
ceive)

5.1... you that we ... all bills on time in future. (assure, pay)

6. We ... new orders before you ... all outstanding bills. (not accept, settle)

7. As long as you ... the goods on time, we ... happy to pay you on receipt.
(deliver, be)

8. We ... obliged to suspend your account unless we ... payment by 1st. (be,
receive)

) fsawosramioo ]

Enact a short dialogue in pairs, in which you will negotiate about a payment which is

overdue.

7]

6.4 Test

100

1. In business there are essential ... main types of financial reports (or
"accounts'').

two
three
four
2. Financial accounting formally ... of the business.
just deals with the loss

records, summarises and reports the transactions
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just deals with the profit

3. Management accounting presents and analyses ... to help managment
take decisions and monitor performance.

management data
marketing data
financial data

4. Income statement measures the business' performance over a given pe-
riod of time, usually ...

one year
two years
three years

5. Balance sheet is a snapshot of the business' assets and its liabilities on
a particular day - usually ... of the financial year.

the following day
the first day
the last day
6. Cash flow statement is ....

a document that shows the money coming into and going out of a company du-
ring a particular period

a document that shows the money coming into a company during a particular
period

a document that shows the money going out of a company during a particular
period

7. Payment terms are the conditions under which a vendor ... a sale.
starts
completes

continues
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8. PIA refres to...
e payment in advance
e payment in advancement
e payment in advancing

9. Letter of credit is...

e aletter from a person allowing the bank that has it to take a particular amount of
money from a person in another country

e a letter from a bank allowing the person who has it to take a particular amount
of money from a bank in another country

e a letter from a bank allowing the person who has it to take a particular amount
of money from a bank in the same country

10. Cash on delivery is ...

e a method of doing business in which a customer will transport goods to a com-
pany and take payment for the goods at the time they are given to the company

e a method of doing business in which a company will order goods to a customer
and take payment for the goods at the time they are given to the customer

e amethod of doing business in which a company will transport goods to a custo-
mer and take payment for the goods at the time they are given to the customer

] e

6.5 Key

LEXIS

6.1 Complete the text with the words below:

a) cost of goods sold (COGS) b) gross margin c) operating expenses d) profit
margin €) turnover
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Last year, Danny sold 80,000 cups, which means he had a 1. e) turnover... of
$ 280,000 (80,000 @ $ 3,50). His 2. a) COGS... was $ 80,000, that is, $
Iper cup. So his 3. b) gross margin... (before fixed costs, tax, etc.) was
71%, or $2,50 per cup. After deducting fixed costs or 4. c) operating ex-
penses... like rent and energy of $100,000, Danny declared an operating
profit of $100,000. He paid $25,000 in taxes (25%), which left net income
of $75,000, a healthy 5. d) profit margin...of 27%.

6.2 Find the suitable word for the following situations:
a) account b) interest c) invoice d) outstanding balance e) overdue f) settle

1. Hello, Mr Black, I am calling about your record of what you ordered and
what you paid. a) account

2. There is an amount of money which you haven’t paid of $500. d) outstan-
ding balance

3. We sent you our detailed list of money to pay on 1 December. ¢) invoice

4. I am afraid it is very late — you were supposed to pay us two months ago. e)
overdue

5. The contract you signed allows us to charge you the cost of credit at 3%. b)
interest

6. Could you please send us payment in full for your bill as soon as possible?
f) settle

6.3 Find the suitable expressions for payment terms:

a) payment in advance b) terms and conditions c) an early payment discount d)
settle the balance e) cash on delivery f) owe someone money g) 30 days* credit
h) a deposit

1. everything is explained in black and white ...b) terms and conditions

2. we need the payment before we ship the goods ...a) payment in advance
3. you can give the delivery man cash or cheque ... e) cash on delivery

4. regular customers can pay one month after we send the invoice ... g) 30
days‘ credit

5. but you can deduct 2% from the total if you pay in less than ten days ... ¢)
an early payment discount

6. because it is a special order we will need 20% now ... h) a deposit

7. you can pay the rest when you come to pick it up ... d) settle the balance
8. do you remember I lent you $10 last month ... f) owe some money

6.4 Complete threats and promises:

1. Unless you pay within three days, we will take legal action. (pay, take)
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2. Our CFO will send you a cheque as soon as he returns from Prague. (send,
return).

3. I will settle our account after the bank confirms our loan. (settle, confirm).
4. We will your order if we do not receive your deposit within two weeks.
(cancel, not receive)

5. T assure you that we will pay all bills on time in future. (assure, pay)

6. We will not accept new orders before you settle all outstanding bills. (not
accept, settle)

7. As long as you deliver the goods on time, we will be happy to pay you on
receipt. (deliver, be)

8. We will be obliged to suspend your account unless we receive payment by
Ist. (be, receive)

6.5.1 TEST

1. In business there are essential ... main types of financial reports (or
"accounts'').

e two
e three
e four

2. Financial accounting formally ... of the business.
e just deals with the loss
e records, summarises and reports the transactions
e just deals with the profit

3. Management accounting presents and analyses ... to help managment
take decisions and monitor performance.

e management data
e marketing data

¢ financial data
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4. Income statement measures the business' performance over a given pe-
riod of time, usually ...

one year
two years
three years

5. Balance sheet is a snapshot of the business' assets and its liabilities on
a particular day - usually ... of the financial year.

the following day
the first day
the last day
6. Cash flow statement is ....

a document that shows the money coming into and going out of a company
during a particular period

a document that shows the money coming into a company during a particular
period

a document that shows the money going out of a company during a particular
period

7. Payment terms are the conditions under which a vendor ... a sale.
starts
completes
continues
8. PIA refres to...
payment in advance
payment in advancement

payment in advancing
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9. Letter of credit is...

e aletter from a person allowing the bank that has it to take a particular amount of
money from a person in another country

e a letter from a bank allowing the person who has it to take a particular
amount of money from a bank in another country

e a letter from a bank allowing the person who has it to take a particular amount
of money from a bank in the same country

10. Cash on delivery is ...

e a method of doing business in which a customer will transport goods to a com-
pany and take payment for the goods at the time they are given to the company

e a method of doing business in which a company will order goods to a customer
and take payment for the goods at the time they are given to the customer

e a method of doing business in which a company will transport goods to a
customer and take payment for the goods at the time they are given to the
customer

|
V kapitole Business costs — Profit and loss and payment jsme se naucili spravné de-

finovat a vysvétlit kliCové terminy v oblasti vykazovani finann¢i vykonnosti spole¢nosti a
také jsme se zaméfili na terminilogii v oblasti platebnich podminek v obchodé.
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7 GLOBAL TRADE

owvmmeeroy [

Kapitola se zamétuje na to, jak spravné pojmenovat, vysvétlit a popsat francizy a jejich
bézné obchodni aktivity. Nasledné se budeme vénovat procvicovani kliCové terminologie
z této oblasti vCetné nejdilezit€jsi slovni zasobé a frazi.

V gramatické Casti se zaméfujeme na pouziti predpiitomného Casu a budeme si jej pro-
cviCovat.

oremorar ]

V této kapitole se naucim:

e Slovni zasobu k tématu francizy,
e Jak spravné porozumét jednotlivym obchodnim aktivitdm franciz,
e Zvladnout a spravné pouzivat predpfitomny cas.

Franchising, franchise, franchisor, franchisee.

7.1 Vocabulary

acquire ziskat, nabyt
accounts receivable ucty pohledavek
advertising reklama

agreement dohoda

annual rocni

available dostupny, k dispozici
benefits vyhody

branch pobocka

brand znacka

business format

struktura, format obchodu

chain

retézec
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contract smlouva

costs naklady

direct costs pfimé naklady
ensure zajistit

establish zalozit, zavést
evaluate hodnotit
equipment vybaveni
evaluation hodnoceni

fee honoraf, odména
franchise licence, fanSiza
franchisee uzivatel licence
franchisor poskytovatel licenze, fran§izy
indirect costs nepiimé naklady
inventory zasoba (zbozi na sklad¢)
logo logo

mid-price stfedni cena
obligations zavazky

offer nabizet

owner vlastnik

payroll mzdy a platy
purchase koupit

ranking hodnoceni
renewable obnovitelny
royalty licen¢ni poplatek
run ridit, vést
startup costs pocatecni naklady
set up zalozit

support podporovat
terminate ukoncit

term lhita, termin
trademark ochrannd znamka
training Skoleni

7.2 International franchising. A franchise investment

In the US, there is an annual ranking of America’s top franchise companies. Here is a
short list of the top three franchises in the USA for the coming year 2013. The first
three franchises are Hampton Hotels, Subway and Jiffy Lube Int’l. Inc. The first Hampton
Inn opened in Memphis, Tennessee in 1984. Hampton Inn was the first mid-price national
hotel chain to begin offering a free continental breakfast and free local phone calls. In 1995,
the Hampton brand introduced Hampton Inn & Suites, which consisted of two-room suite
hotel rooms with living rooms and kitchen areas. In 1999, Hampton Inn was acquired by
Hilton Worldwide, which currently has hotels in 84 countries. Other Hilton Worldwide
brands include Waldorf Astoria Hotels & Resorts, Conrad Hotels & Resorts, Hilton
Hotels & Resorts, DoubleTree by Hilton, Embassy Suites Hotels, Hilton Garden Inn, Ho-
mewood Suites by Hilton, Home2 Suites by Hilton and Hilton Grand Vacations. In the
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subsequent part we can find some more detailed information on the franchise number
in the USA, Hampton Hotels.

Franchise Units

Year U.S. Canadian International Co.owned
2012 1,803 35 34 35
2011 1,775 34 24 35
2010 1,705 30 18 39
2009 1,595 28 13 31

Startup Costs, Ongoing Fees and Financing

Total Investment: $3,695,500-$13,524,000
Franchise Fee: $65,000
Ongoing Royalty Fee: 6%

Term of Franchise Agreement: 22 years, renewable

In-House Third Party
Financing Type no yes
Franchise Fee no yes
Startup Costs no yes
Equipment no yes
Inventory no yes
Accounts Receivable no yes
Payroll no yes

How This Franchise Supports Franchisees
Training: Available at headquarters: 2 weeks. General manager training : 5 days.

Ongoing Support: Newsletter, Meetings, Toll-free phone line, Grand opening, Internet,
Security/safety procedures, Field operations/evaluations, Purchasing cooperatives,

Marketing Support: Co-op advertising, Ad slicks, National media, Regional adverti-
sing,

Other marketing support: PR, online tools

Zdroj: Entrepreneur: Hampton Hotels. [online]. 2013 [cit. 2013-01-21]. Dostupné z: htip:/www.entrepre-
neur.com/franchises/hamptonhotels/284276-0.html
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7]

1 How many franchise units does the company have now and how was it five years ago?
2 How much is the franchise fee?

3 How does this franchise support franchisees?

4 How long is the franchise agreement valid?

5 What are the other top franchises in the USA?

LEXIS

7.1 Match the words with the suitable definitions:

1. A ... is simply an agreement between a) Franchisor
two parties that lays out the obligations and
benefits of selling/marketing a good or
service, sometimes under an established
mehod.

2. ... is the company or individual who all- | b) Franchisee
ows other companies or individuals to do
business using its trademarks, logos, and/or
business systems.

3. ... is the person who gets the right to use ¢) Franchise
the franchisor’s trademarks, logos, and/or
business systems and earn money with the
business generated.

7.2 Translate the following phrases into English:

. podepsat a prodlouzit smlouvu na 20 let
. zalozit novou pobocku

. Vytvofit nova pracovni mista

. pouzivat jednotnou znacku

. platit matefské firm¢é honorar

N B[N

7.3 Which word is different:

. sign ratify acetify write

. earn make generate do

. allow let disallow permit
. support counteract assist uphold

AR

7.4 Translate the following into Czech:
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1. A franchise is simply an agreement
between two parties that lays out the obliga-
tions and benefits of selling/marketing a
good or service, sometimes under an esta-
blished method.

2. Franchisor is the company or indivi-
dual who allows other companies or indi-
viduals to do business using its trademarks,
logos, and/or business systems

3. Franchisee is the person who gets the
right to use the franchisor’s trademarks, lo-
gos, and/or business systems and earn
money with the business generated

4. Product Distribution Franchise is of the
two types of franchises, product distribution
franchises represent the most percentages of
retail sales. In this type of franchise, the fran
chisee (the person who bought his or her
own branch of the franchisor’s business)
has access to the franchisor’s supplies, lo-
gos, and trademarks, but is not obligated to
run the business under a specific system.
Examples of the product distribution fran-
chise include Pepsi, Ford Motor Company,
and Exxon.

5. Business Format Franchise along with
the franchisor’s product/service and trade-
marks, the business format franchise
supplies the business model, marketing
support, and more. For example, McDonald’s
sells franchises with the same business for-
mat which ensures your experience under the
Golden Arches is the same whether you’re
in Miami or Seattle.

B

Go online and find some franchises in this country. Work in pairs discuss the findings
and present them to the classmates.
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7.3 Grammar - Present perfect. Expressions used in schedul-
ing, giving updates and handling questions

Predptitomny Cas oznacuje udalosti, které se udaly ¢asove ,,pred ted’/nyni“, nevyjadiuje,
kdy se udalost stala; pfi pouziti pfesného ¢asu je nutné pouzit minuly Cas prosty. Nejcasteji
se poji s Casovymi vyrazy, jako jsou: for, since, ever, never, just, yet, recently, lately, alre-
ady apod.

Tvoreni:

Kladna véta: Podmét + have (3. o0s. j. €. has) + pficesti minulé + zbytek véty (I have been
to many countries on business).

Zapor: Podmét + haven't (3. os. j. €. hasn't) + pricesti minulé + zbytek véty (She has not
visited our company).

Otazka: Have (has) + podmét + pricesti minulé + zbytek véty? (Have they ever gone to
the subsidiaries in Austria?

Pouziti:
a) vyjadiuje déj, ktery zacal v minulosti a stale pokracuje,

b) vyjadiuje déj, ktery se stal nékdy v nasem zivote, udalost se stala v minulosti a je
ukoncena, ale Gcinek je stale ,,citit™; neni dulezité, kdy se d€j odehral,

¢) vyjadifuje minulou udalost, ktera ma pfitomny nasledek, d& je obvykle v nedavné
minulosti.

Nyni nasleduji dalsi priklady k vySe uvedenym pravidlim.

Nyni nésleduji dalsi piiklady.

He has lived in London for ten years.
. |
The payment has not arrived yet.
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Have you ever been to France?

GRAMMAR-EXERCISES

7.5 Use the correct forms of past tenses or present perfect tenses in each situ-
ation:

1. Peter ....... (become) a manager of the franchise when he ......... (be) 31.
2. Howlong ...... (your sales manager, work) in the multinational franchise?
3.1...... (receive) your sales proposal, I am quite impressed.

4. We ... (agree) on Monday to resume contract talks.

5.Ourteam ....... (implement) necessities in our French branch last week.

6. Over the past three months Paula ... ... (be involved) in many interesting projects.

7.6 Complete the suitable past participle verb forms with the following irregular
verbs:

1. be...

2. leave...
3. have...
4 fly...

5. speak...
6. learn. ..
7. have to...
8. take...

7.7 Make questions or if necessary use since when / how many / how many times/
how + long + the present perfect:
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1.

She has been the Austrian franchisor for five years. ..

2. We have had twenty outlets in Europe for over 10 years. ..

3.

Our company has had the agreement with KFC for over 20 years...

4. I have served 25 customer today...

5.

This morning we have had over 150 people in the shop...

6. I have visited Germany five times. ..

7.8 Underline the correct time expression:

1.

Last year / this year we made a profit of $2 million.

2. Last year / this year we have made a bigger profit — close to $5 million.

3. A few months ago / so far this month we have had 10,000 hits on our website.

4. A few months ago / so far this year we only had an average of 8,000 hits per month.

5.

I have worked on this project since it started / in the early stages, and I am sure it is

going to be a success.

6.
now.

I worked on that project since it started / in the early stages, but I do not work on it

7.9. Complete the sentences with the phrases below:

a) ahead of schedule b) behind schedule c¢) exceeded the budget d) met the deadline e)
missed the deadline f) on budget g) on schedule h) under budget

1.

2.
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The project is going very slowly. Itis ...

The project is going very quickly. Itis ...

. The project is following the time plan closely. It is ...

. The project finished late. It ...

. The project finished on time. It ...

. The project is following the spending plan closely. Itis ...
. The project is costing less than we thought. It is ...

. The project is finished and it cost more than planned. We ...
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7.10 Match the beginnings and endings of the expressions for handling questions:

1...2..3..4..5...6...7...8 ...

1. Actually, we have a) good question.
2. Can I come to that b) follow you.
3. I am sorry, I do not c) earlier, ... (+ more information)
4.1 am afraid I cannot go d) planned ... (+ more information)
5. As I mentioned e) in a moment?
6. I am glad you asked f) did not catch that.
7. Sorry, 1 g) me that
8. That is a very h) into detail right now.
oz ]
7.4 Test

1. Business Format Franchise is a type of franchise that includes not only a ...,
but also the complete method to conduct the business itself, such as the marketing
plan and operations manuals.

e product, service and trademark
e product, production and producer
e product, assembly and distributor

2. Franchise is a ... that describes the relationship between the Franchisor
and Franchisee, including use of trademarks, fees, support and control.

license

e tool
e equipment

3. Franchise Agreement is the legal ... contract between the Franchisor and Fran-
chisee which tells each party what is required of them.

e written
e described
e inscribed
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4. The Franchisor is the person or company that grants the Franchisee the right
to ... under their trademark or trade name.

create business

make business

do business

S. Multi-Unit-Franchise is an agreement where the Franchisor grants a Franchisee
the rights to open and operate ...

dozens of units

more than one unit

less than one unit

6. Product Distribution Franchise is a franchise where the Franchisee simply
... the Franchisor’s products without using the Franchisor’s method of conducting
business.

o sells
e purchases
e buys

7. Royalty is the ... payment made by the Franchisee to the Franchisor, usually
based on a percentage of the Franchisee’s gross sales.

e regular
e random
e irregular

8. ... is the Franchisor’s identifying marks, brand name and logo that are licensed
to the Franchisee.

e Stylemark
e Hallmark
e Trademark

9. A single-unit (direct-unit) franchise is an agreement where the Franchisor
grants a Franchisee the rights to open and operate ... franchise unit.

e one
e two
e more than three

10. ... costs are costs associated with setting up a business, such as accountant's
fees, legal fees, registration charges, as well as advertising, promotional activities,
and employee training.
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e Start-up
e Start-off
e Start-down

]

7.5 Key

LEXIS

7.1 Match the words with the suitable definitions:

1. A ¢) is simply an agreement between ¢) Franchise
two parties that lays out the obligations and
benefits of selling/marketing a good or
service, sometimes under an established
mehod.

2. a) is the company or individual who a) Franchisor
allows other companies or individuals to
do business using its trademarks, logos,
and/or business systems.

3. b) is the person who gets the right to use | b) Franchisee
the franchisor’s trademarks, logos, and/or
business systems and earn money with the
business generated.

7.2 Translate the following phrases into English:

1. podepsat a prodlouzit smlouvu na 20 let to sign and prolong the contract for 20
years

2. zalozit novou pobocku to set up / found / establish a new
branch

3. vytvofit nova pracovni mista to create new jobs

4. pouzivat jednotnou znacku to use uniform brand

5. platit matefské firmé honorar to pay royalty to the parent company

7.3 Which word is different:

1. sign ratify acetify write

2. earn make generate do

3. allow let disallow permit

4. support counteract assist uphold

7.4 Translate the following into Czech:
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1. A franchise is simply an agreement
between two parties that lays out the obli-
gations and benefits of selling/marketing a
good or service, sometimes under an esta-
blished method.

1. FranSiza je jednoduSe dohoda
mezi dvéma stranami, ktera uklada
povinnosti a vyhody prodeje/marke-
tingu zbozi nebo sluzby stanovenym
zpusobem.

2. Franchisor is the company or indivi-
dual who allows other companies or indi-
viduals to do business using its trade-
marks, logos, and/or business systems

2. Franlizor je spoleCnost nebo jed-
notlivec, kterd/y umoznuje jinym
spoleCnostem nebo fyzickym osobam
podnikat a pozivat ochrannou
znamku, loga nebo obchodni systémy.

3. Franchisee is the person who gets the
right to use the franchisor’s trademarks, lo-
gos, and/or business systems and earn
money with the business generated

3. Provozovatel / uzivatel licence je
osobou, ktera ziskava prava k pouzi-
vani ochranné znamky franSizy,
loga, obchodnich systému a vydéla-
vat penize na zakladé€ vytvoreného
obchodu.

4. Product Distribution Franchise is of the
two types of franchises, product distribution
franchises represent the most percentages of
retail sales. In this type of franchise, the fran
chisee (the person who bought his or her
own branch of the franchisor’s business)
has access to the franchisor’s supplies, lo-
gos, and trademarks, but is not obligated
to run the business under a specific sys-
tem. Examples of the product distribution
franchise include Pepsi, Ford Motor Com-
pany, and Exxon.

4. Produktova distribu¢ni fransiza je
jednou ze dvou typu fransiz a nejvice je
zastoupena maloobchodnimi prodeji. U
tohoto typu fransizy provozovatel / uzi-
vatel licence (osoba, kterd koupila
svou vlastni pobocku franSizy) ma
piistup k dodavkam, logiim a ochran-
nym znamkam francizora, ale neni po-
vinna provozovat svou firmu podle
néjakého konkrétniho systému. Piikla-
dem tohoto typu fransizy jsou formy
jako Pepsi, Ford Motor a Exxon.

5. Business Format Franchise along with
the franchisor’s product/service and trade-
marks, the business format franchise
supplies the business model, marketing
support, and more. For example, McDonald’s
sells franchises with the same business for-
mat which ensures your experience under the
Golden Arches is the same whether
you’re in Miami or Seattle.

5. Fransiza se stejnym obchodnim
formatem spolu s vyrobkem/sluzbou,
ochrannou znamkou francizora je
podporovana obchodnim modelem,
marketingové apod. Na priklad
McDonald’s prodava fransizy se
stejnym obchodnim formatem a za-
jistuje tak stejny zazitek restaurace
,pod zlatymi oblouky®, at jste v
Miami nebo Seattlu.
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GRAMMAR-EXERCISES

7.5 Use the correct forms of past tenses or present perfect tenses in each situ-

ation:

1.

2.

3.

Peter became a manager of the franchise when he was 31.
How long has worked in the multinational franchise?

[ have received your sales proposal, [ am quite impressed.

4. We agreed on Monday to resume contract talks.

5.

6.

Our team implemented necessities in our French branch last week.

Over the past three months Paula has been involved in many interesting projects.

7.6 Complete the suitable past participle verb forms with the following irregular
verbs:

1.

2.

been

left

. had

. flown

. spoken
. learnt
. had to

. taken

7.7 Make questions or if necessary use since when / how many / how many times/
how + long + the present perfect:

1.

She has been the Austrian franchisor for five years... How long has she been...?

2. We have had twenty outlets in Europe for over 10 years... How long have you had...?

3. Our company has had the agreement with KFC for over 20 years... How long have
you had...?
4. I have served 25 customer today... How many customers have you served today?
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5. This morning we have had over 150 people in the shop... How many people have
you had this morning?

6. I have visited Germany five times... How many times have you visited Germany?
7.8 Underline the correct time expression:

1. Last year / this year we made a profit of $2 million.

2. Last year / this year we have made a bigger profit — close to $5 million.

3. A few months ago / so_far this month we have had 10,000 hits on our website.

4. A few months ago / so far this year we only had an average of 8,000 hits per month.

5. I have worked on this project since it started / in the early stages, and I am sure it is
going to be a success.

6. I worked on that project since it started / in_the early stages, but I do not work on it
now.

7.9. Complete the sentences with the phrases below:

a) ahead of schedule b) behind schedule c¢) exceeded the budget d) met the deadline e)
missed the deadline f) on budget g) on schedule h) under budget

1. The project is going very slowly. It is ... b) behind schedule

2. The project is going very quickly. Itis ... a) ahead of schedule

3. The project is following the time plan closely. It is ... g) on schedule

4. The project finished late. It ... e) missed the deadline

5. The project finished on time. It ... d) met the deadline

6. The project is following the spending plan closely. It is ... f) on budget

7. The project is costing less than we thought. It is ... h) under budget

8. The project is finished and it cost more than planned. We ... ¢) exceeded the budget
7.10 Match the beginnings and endings of the expressions for handling questions:
1d)2e)3b)4h)5¢)6g)7f)8a)

1. Actually, we have a) good question.

2. Can I come to that b) follow you.
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3. Iam sorry, I do not c) earlier, ... (+ more information)
4.1 am afraid I cannot go d) planned ... (+ more information)
5. As I mentioned e) in a moment?
6. I am glad you asked f) did not catch that.
7. Sorry, 1 g) me that
8. That is a very h) into detail right now.

7.5.1 TEST

1. Business Format Franchise is a type of franchise that includes not only a ...,
but also the complete method to conduct the business itself, such as the marketing
plan and operations manuals.

e product, service and trademark
e product, production and producer
e product, assembly and distributor

2. Franchise is a ... that describes the relationship between the Franchisor
and Franchisee, including use of trademarks, fees, support and control.

license

e tool
e equipment

3. Franchise Agreement is the legal ... contract between the Franchisor and Fran-
chisee which tells each party what is required of them.

written
described

inscribed

4. The Franchisor is the person or company that grants the Franchisee the right
to ... under their trademark or trade name.

create business

make business

do business

S. Multi-Unit-Franchise is an agreement where the Franchisor grants a Franchisee
the rights to open and operate ...
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e dozens of units
e more than one unit
e less than one unit

6. Product Distribution Franchise is a franchise where the Franchisee simply
. the Franchisor’s products without using the Franchisor’s method of conducting
business.

o sells
e purchases
e buys

7. Royalty is the ... payment made by the Franchisee to the Franchisor, usually
based on a percentage of the Franchisee’s gross sales.

e regular
e random
e irregular

8. ... is the Franchisor’s identifying marks, brand name and logo that are licensed
to the Franchisee.

e Stylemark
e Hallmark
e Trademark

9. A single-unit (direct-unit) franchise is an agreement where the Franchisor
grants a Franchisee the rights to open and operate ... franchise unit.

e one
e two
e more than three

10. ... costs are costs associated with setting up a business, such as accountant's
fees, legal fees, registration charges, as well as advertising, promotional activities,
and employee training.

e Start-up
e Start-off
e Start-down
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woreroy [T

V kapitole Global trade jsme se naucili, jak spravné pojmenovat jednotlivé typy fran-
Ciz, ¢im se konkrétné zabyvaji a uvedli jsme si nejdilezitéjsi jazykové i komunikaéni prvky
spojené s globalnim obchodem a také kli¢ové nazvoslovi spolecné s pouzitim predpiitom-
ného Casu.
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DICTIONARY
Unit 1
advertising reklama
approach piistup
arise vznikat
come into contact vstupovat do kontaktu
common spole¢ny
commission provize
customer zakaznik
demand poptavka
detached oddéleny, izolovany
driven nadseny, motivovany
goal cil
market trh
market research pruzkum trhu
measure zméfit, spocitat
objective cil
price cena
promotion podpora prodeje
purchase kupovat
pursue sledovat
revenue piijem, trzby
target cil
tension nape€ti
Unit 2

above the line promotion

nadlinkova reklamni kamparn

acquire

ziskat, nabyt

advertising

reklama

advertising campaign

reklamni kampan

common ground

spoleCny z4jem

consider zvazovat, premyslet o néCem
consumer spotiebitel

dismiss zavrhnout, odmitnout

divert pievést, pfesmérovat

doubt pochybnost

encourage podporit, povzbudit

entice prilakat, nalakat
indispensable nezbytny, nepostardatelny
measure mefit

medium masovy sdélovaci prostredek
message poselstvi, vzkaz

mission statement

prohlaseni o firemnim poslani

mission vision

prohlaseni o firemni predstaveé
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objection namitka
persuasive presvédcivy
product life cycle zivotni cyklus produktu
objective cil
reach oslovit, dostat se
salesperson prodejce
skills dovednosti
substantial znacny
swap nahradit, vyménit
Unit 3
acknowledged uznavany
act in the name of a company jednat jménem spoleCnosti
acomplish uspeét

authenticity of signatures

pravost podpisu

all property

cely majetek

amount of the registered capital

vySe zakladniho jméni

be liable up to the amount

ruCit do vyse

bear liability for the obligations

rucit za zavazky

board of directors predstavenstvo

brand znacka

breach of obligations poruseni zavazku

CEO vykony predseda spoleCnosti

common commercial name

spole¢né obchodni jméno

commercial name

obchodni jméno

commercial register

obchodni rejstiik

conquer dobyt, ziskats
entrepreneur podnikatel/ka
competition konkurence
entrepreneur podnikatel/ka
establish zalozit
executive jednatel
founder zakladatel

general commercial partnership

vetrejna obchodni spole¢nost

identity of members

urceni spolecnikti

influence

ovlivnit

invent

vynalezt

joint stock company

akciova spolecnost

limited liability company

spolecnost s ru¢enim omezenym

limited partnership

komanditni spolecnost

member

spole¢nik

memorandum of association

spoleCenska smlouva

monetary / non-monetary contribution

penézity / nepenézitd vklad

notarial deed

notarsky zapis

value

number of shares of a specific nominal

pocet akcii o urcité jmenovité hodnote

panache

elegance, Smrnc
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paying up splaceni

persuade presvedcit

prowess zrucnost, obratnost
registered capital is divided zakladni kapital je rozvrzen
retailer maloobchodnik

sign podepsat

signature podpis

stipulate stanovit

stock akcie

supervisory board

dozor¢i rada

Unit 4
absent nepiitomny
abstain from (voting) zdrzet se (hlasovani)
accomplish dosahnout
acquisition koupé, nakup
address oslovit
adjourn odlozit, prerusit
agenda program, pofad jednani

AGM (annual general meeting)

valna hromada

allocate

rozdélit, pridélit

AOB (any other business) razné

apologies omluva

ballot hlasovat

board of directors predstavenstvo
boardroom zasedaci sifi spravni rady
brainstorm hledat nové napady
buyout skoupeni, vyplaceni
casting vote rozhoduyjici hlas
chairperson/chair predseda

clarify objasnit, vyjasnit
clarification objasnéni, vyjasnéni
closing remarks poznamky na zaveér
collaborate spolupracovat
commence zacit

comment vyjadrit se
conference porada, jednani
conference hall zasedaci sin
confidential divérny

consensus shoda, souhlas
deadline konény termin
designate jmenovat, vybrat, urCit
formality formalita

franchise fransiza

grievance stiznost

guest speaker hostujici mluvci
implement zavest, provest
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joint venture

podnik se spoleCnou majetkovou ucasti

limited partnership

komanditni spolecnost

Itd. (limited liability) S.I.0.

mandatory povinny

minutes zapis, oficalni zprava
motion predlozit navrh
objectives cile

opening remarks poznamky na zacatku
participant ucastnik
partnership spoleCnost, sdruzeni

plc. (public limited company)

verejna / obchodni akciova spolecnost

private limited company

S.I.0.

proxy vote hlas v zastoupeni
punctual dochvilny

recommend doporucit

show of hands hlasovéani zdvizenim ruky
sole trader zivnostnik

takeover prevzeti (firmy)
trading partnership obchodni spole¢nost
unanimous jednohlasny
vote hlas

Unit 5
alternatives alternativy
amplify rozveést
arbitration rozhodci fizeni
bargain vyjednavat
bottom-line spodni hranice
collective spole¢ny
compensate nahradit, vykompenzovat
comply vyhovét, splnit
comprise zahrnovat, obsahovat, tvorit
concession ustupek
conflict resolution feSeni konfliktu
confront Celit, postavit se
consensus shoda, souhlas
cooperation spoluprace
counter proposal protinabidka
counterattack protiutok
counterpart protéjSek
demands pozadavky
deadlock mrtvy bod
dispute spor,hadka, pie
be entitled to mit pravo na
flexible pruzny, piizpusobivy
haggling smlouvani, dohadovani, handrkovani se
hostility nesouhlas, odpor
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high -ball ucinit vysoky pozadavek
impulse podnét, stimul
indecisive vahavy, nerozhodny
leverage pusobeni, vliv
log - rolling vzajemné vychvalovani
low -ball ucinit nizky pozadavek
mislead uvést v omyl, oklamat
mutual vzajemny
objective cil
point of view pohled
pressure tlak
proposal navrh
receptive ochotny, pfistupny
resentment zlost, vztek
resistance odpor
resolve resit
tactics taktika
tension napéti, pnuti
trade- off vymeénny obchod
ultimatum ultimatum
unrealistic nerealisticky
victory vitézstvi
yield ustoupit
Unit 6
account ucet
assure ujistit
balance sheet vykaz zisku a ztrat
bankrupt insolventni
cancel zru$it
cash on delivery dobirka
cash flow statement vykaz penéznich tokti
confirm potvrdit
freeze zmrazit
gross margin hruba marze
income statement vykaz piijmua
incur zpusobit, privodit
interest urok
invoice faktura
measure mefit

operating expanses

provozni vydaje

outstanding balance

zbyvajici dluh

overdue

zpozdény

owe

dluzit

payment terms

platebni podminky

profit margin

ziskové rozpéti

reminder

upominka sus
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settle zaplatit, urovnat

suspend odlozit, prerusit

threat vyhrizka

turnover obrat

vendor prodejce

wholeseller velkoobchodnik
Unit 7

acquire ziskat, nabyt

accounts receivable ucty pohledavek

advertising reklama

agreement dohoda

annual rocni

available dostupny, k dispozici

benefits vyhody

branch pobocka

brand znacka

business format struktura, format obchodu

chain fetézec

contract smlouva

costs naklady

direct costs pfimé naklady

ensure zajistit

establish zalozit, zavést

evaluate hodnotit

equipment vybaveni

evaluation hodnoceni

fee honoraf, odména

franchise licence, fanSiza

franchisee uzivatel licence

franchisor poskytovatel licenze, fran§izy

indirect costs nepfimé naklady

inventory zasoba (zbozi na sklad¢)

logo logo

mid-price stfedni cena

obligations zavazky

offer nabizet

owner vlastnik

payroll mzdy a platy

purchase koupit

ranking hodnoceni

renewable obnovitelny

royalty licen¢ni poplatek

run ridit, vést

startup costs pocatecni naklady

set up zalozit

support podporovat
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terminate ukoncit

term lhita, termin
trademark ochranna znamka
training Skoleni
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SHRNUTI STUDIJNIi OPORY

Touto kapitolou konci opora Cizojazycna priprava AJ 2, kterd vas jazykové piipravila
pro odbornou komunikaci v oblastech: Marketing and Selling — Advertising, Entrepre-
neurs — Business Organisation and People, — Cutting Costs — Profit, Loss and Pay-
ment. Pro tyto ucely byla navrzena nejriznéjsi cviCeni a testy, véetné zaveéreCného testu,
ktery shrnuje to nejpodstatnéjs§i z dané kapitoly. Vystupem studia v opote Cizojazycna
priprava AJ 2 bylo ziskani fundovanych jazykovych dovednosti nezbytnych pro vedeni
odborné diskuse v angli¢tiné pro ekonomy a také prohloubeni si odbornych znalosti z ob-
lasti marketingu a prodeje, reklamy, podnikateld, organizace firmy, snizovani nakladd,
zisku, ztraty a plateb. Uvedenou slovni zasobu je mozné pouzit v jakémkoli firemnim ¢i
obchodnim prostredi. Dale je mozné v ramci prohlubovani jazykovych znalosti vyuzit fadu
lexikalnich a gramatickych cviceni, ktera jsou opatfena klicem. A v neposledni fad¢ jsou v
textu uvedeny webové odkazy, které slouzi k dal§imu jazykovému vzdélavani. Vsem stu-
dentim piejeme hodn€ uspécha a chuti se dale jazykové rozvijet.
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